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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
the Munlclpal Leglslature
Municlpaltty of Cidra
Cldra, Puerto Rlco

y:",ir^::::1r:1]T accompanying financiat statements of the governmenlat activiiies, theousrnessrype activities. each maior fun!, and the aggregate reriaining fund information ofthe Muntcipatity of ctdra, puertohtco (Mrri"ipiritvlI" 3i 
""Jioiir,""y"rr, "no"a.lrn" 

so,
3019: Yhigh collectively comprise re rvruniclia tlrs ba"" ri""""i"i.ijt"r"nts as tisted inthe tabre of contents. These financiar statements ire ttre iespon"ioirffi ," urni"rp"lrty,"management. our responsibility is to express an opinion on these'flnanciar statementsbased on our audit-

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generalty accepted in theUnited States of America and the standards appli&Ote to tinaiciai iuoits contained incovernment AuditinE srandards, issued bv the com jti"rrlie 
"""i"ii? u]iit"d states. Thosestandards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain ,"*o-nr-Ot" uarr"nce aboutwhether the respective ,inancial statemenG are free of ,ut"riuf-riiat"t"r"nt. An auditinctudes examining, on a test basis, eviden"" .upportingit u 

"rioJnt" "-ii 
oi""to"rr"" in tt 

"respective financiar statements. An audit arso iri"rroe"Iasr"siin!tr"i.iornting prin"ipr""
used and significant estimates made by managem*t, ," *"ii"" 

"i"1-uating 
the overafinancial statements presentation. We beiieve ttra-t our auJit piovioes i rlasonaore uasis iorour opinion.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materialrespects, the respective financial position of the governrunt"i 
"Aiuiti"q 

the Ousiness tyfea-ctivities, each major fund, ano the aggregite ,ur"tning tirnJ-l'niormation of theMunlciparrty of cidra, puerto Rrco, as of irne-so, zoro, uri tt" i".f".tir" changes inflnancial position and cash flows. thereof for the year'the; eniei-in contormity wittraccounting principtes generally accepted in the United-states of m"ii"i.
ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report datedDecember 8, 2010, on our consideratio; of the Municipafit,;s i"tlin"t iontrot over financialreporting and on our tests of its compliance witn certain'proveioni oiiur", regutations,contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The prrpo"" of ihat report is todescribe the scope of our testing of internat control over fininliail-p-o,iing 

"no "omptianceand the. resutts of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on tf," iniirn"r control overfinancial reporting or on comptiance. That report is an i"t"grii p",t 
"i 

r. 
"rdit 

performed inaccordance with Goyernment Auditing!standards and sho;ld b" 
"oniiOirJ 

in u""u."ing t uresults of our audit.

77;
7

L Callc Parani {1686, El Cerezal, San Juan. p.R.00926-.]l{., _T.1. (78?)
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Accounting principres generally accepted in the united states of America required that theManagement's Discussion and. Analysis, on pages 3 through L:2, and the Budgetary
Comparison Schedule€enerat Fund, on page 4g, Oe presentJO to supptement the basicfinancial statements. Such information, itthougtr not a part oi the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essentiar pan ofthe flnanciar reporting for praci-ng the basic financiar statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. we have applied certain limitedprocedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires o7management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing theinformation for consistency with management,a responses to our inquires, the;asic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basicfinancial statement. We do not express an opinion or providE any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufflcient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statementsthat collectively comprise the Municlpality's finincial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circutar A-133,Iudlts of States, Local Govemments, and Non- profi Orlanizations, and is also not arequired part of the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additionalprocedures, including comparing and reconciling such information direc y to the underlyin,
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statement or the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditingstandards generally accepted in the Ljnited States of America. ln our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
wb?le.

-b-Uru Pl lsc
r-dpP-veo(, Cpr, pst

San Juan, Puerto Rico
December 8, 2O1O

Stamp No. 2575430 of the puerto Rico
Society of Certified Pubtic Accountants
was affixed to the record copy of this repon.

2Ldpez-Vega, CPA, PSC

Public Accountanls / Managcmcnt Advisors



@MMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RIOO
MUNICIPALIIY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENTS DECUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR EI{DED JUNE 30, 2O1O

This discussion and analysis of the Munjcipallty of Cidra (the Municipality) financial performanceprovides an overview of the tVunicioatity.s iin"n"irr uJiriti""ior'ii"ii"l"ir"", 
"noud 

on June 30,2010. This Management oiscussio" 
"no 

en"rv.," fv-oanj .rrirli'0" i#,," conjunction with theaccompanying basic financiar statements and the accompanvrng not"" to those financiarstatements. Besides, this document inctudes comparative dati ,iir, p-rioil"u, 
"" 

tt is informa.onwas avaitabte for the fiscat year ended on June 30, ZOoS. ini. Mb&A L prepared in order tocomply with such pronouncement and, among otter prrpoa""llo provide the financialstatements users with the following major informati-on:

1, a broader basis in focusing important issues;

2, acknowledgement of an overview of the Municipality,s financial activites;

3. provides for an evaluation of its financjal condition as of the end of fiscal year 2OOg_2Ol.lOcompared with prior year results;

4. identification of uses of funds in the financing of the Municipality,s variety of activities and;

5, assess management's ability to handle budgetary functions.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financiar condition and resurts of operations as refrected in the financiar statements preparedfor fiscal year 2010 constitute factuar evidence ot *re rvrrniciparitv;s eiJromic strengttr oy ttreend of such year. The following comments deserve special mentlon: 
' - - -

1. Total.assets of the Nlunicipality amounted to $94,669,g23 which represents an increaseof 2% compared to prior fiscal year.

2. At the end of flscar year 2010, totar liabirities amounted to $46,491,s62. out of saidamount, $36,976,773 corresponded to long_term fiaoifNe" oi rt,i"t SSf,gOs,OOorepresented the outstandjng balance of bonds and notes issued. The Municipalitycontinued to meet all debt service requirements, most oi *f,i"t ,"" paid from selfgenerated revenues.

3. Total net assets of the Municipality amounted to $4g,77g,26L which represents anincrease of 3% compared to prior flscalyear,

4. Total revenues available for the financing of activities as reflected in the Statement ofActivities amounted to 929,441.:699, derived from tn" rorio*inliorr""s: $358,763 fromcharges for services; $5,659,821 from operating grunt" und ;o;riLrtions; $2,517,607from capital grants and contributions obtaineo fro]mittrei soui.i!, uno Szo,gos,++g tro,general revenues available_
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COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENTS DTSCUSSTON AND ANALySts _ (coNItNuED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2O1O

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

5. Total expenses incurred to afford the cost of all functions and programs as reflected in theStatement of Activities amounted to $28,380,980.

6. As reflected in the Statement of Activities, the current fiscal year operations contributed toan increase in the Net Assets flgure by g1,060,659.

7. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Municipality,s Governmentat Funds reported
combined ending fund batances of $11,068,172.

L ln the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenue decreased
91,19?,9?5 (or 4%), neverthetess governmental activities ;xpenditures decrease
$7,727,35o (or 2I%).

9. As the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality,s general fund balance amounted to
$60,829 compared to a fund batance of gfSO,+ZS in tn-e prioi iiicar year.

1O.The actual ceneral Fund budgetary activities resulted in an unfavorable balance of($1,845,230).

FUNDAMENTALS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTATION

The new approach used in the presentation of the financial statements of the t\Iunicipality isbased on a government-wide view of such statements as v/ell as " 
pr"""nt"tion of individual

funds.behavior during flscal year 2010. The combination of these two plrspectives provide theuser the opportunity to address significant questions concerning the content of said financiar
statements, and provide the basjs for a comparable analysis ofiuture years performance. Thecomparative analysis is a meaningful and useful management tool for m;nicipal management in
the decislon making process.

Under the aforementioned approach, assets and Iiabilities are recognized using the accrual basisof accountlng which is similar to the method used by most private-enterprises. This means thatcurrent year's revenues and expenses are accounted for regardless of ,i,"n ca"h is received orpaid.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COMPONENTS

The basic financial statements consist of the government wide financial statements, the majorfunds financial statements and the notes to the financial statements which provide details,
disclosure and description ofthe most important items included in said statemenrs.

The statement of Net Assets refrects information of the Municiparity as a whore on a consoridated
basis and provides rerevant information about its financiar strengttr as retLcteo at the end of thefiscalyear.

4



COMMONWEALTII OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENTS DECUSSION AND ANAL\6IS - (CONNNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the focus
from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the lvlunicipality as a whole
(government-wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and
major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to
year or government to government) and enhance the Municipality,s accountability.

GOVERNMEMENT - WIDE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

The Government-Wlde Financial Statements are designed to provide users of the financial
statements with a broad overview of the Municipality,s finances in a manner similar to private
sector companies.

The statement of Net Asset presents information on afl of the Municiparity's assets and riabirities,
with the difference between both reported as net assets. over time, inireases or decreases in
net assets may serve as a usefur indicator of whether the financiar position of the rr4uniciparity is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showjng how the Municipality,s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscaryear. AI changes in net assets are reported as soon asthe
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows..Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of Activities that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The statement of Activities is focused on both th;
gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the government,s general tax and
other revenues This is intended to summarize and simprify the use-r's anarysis of cost of various
governmental services.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The.fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality,s most
significant funds, not the Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has only one kind of fund
which is the governmental fund.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements, However, unlike the
Government wide Financiar statements, Government Fund Financial statements, focus on near
term inflows and outfrows of spendabre resources, as wefi as on barances of spendabre resources
available at the end of the fiscal year, Such lnformation is useful in evaluating the Municipality,s
near term financial requirements.

5



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIry OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENTS D|SCUSSTON AND ANALlGts _ (co nNuED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENIS (CONTINUED)

B€cause the.focus of governmentar funds is narrower than that of the government wide financiarstatements, it is usefut to comDare the inrorrgtion pi"."ii"i ioig;;ir"no, ,rnds with simitarinformation presented for Eovernmental activities in the govern;ent wide financial statements.By doing so, users of the b;sic financial stater""t ,iv i"tt"i ,"Oir"t"nd the long_term impactof the Municipatity's near term Rnanciat aecisioni. B;fi;; il;;:rnmentat Fund BatanceSheet and the Governmentat runo sJatemeni oi ier""r"., E*piio],"r'r"" and changes in FundBatances provide a reconcitiation to facilitate this c;;par-;n 
'i"i*l"-, 

gor"rnr"ntat funds andgovernmental activities.

INFRASTRUCIURE ASSEIS

Historically, a government.s largest group of assets (infrastructureroads, bridges, undergroundpipes [unless associated with a utitity], etc.) have not O""n l"plrtuO nor depreciated ingovemment financial statements. GASB 34 requires tnut tn"i" urrJt" O" valued and reportedwithin the covernmental cotumn of tn" ebrurnruni.wiO" liiJr"no. Additiona,y, thegovernment must erect to either (a) depreciate these assets ore, *rJi 
"stimateo 

u"*rl riii orloj
t::lT 3 

sy:tem of asset management designed to maintain tl 
" 

i"*i"" detivery potentiat to
!9:, p"lp"tyiq. f the government devetop; the 

"*r"t ,"nig"r"r,t system (the modifiedapproach) which periodicalty (at teast every thkd yearf, Ov Lt"J"rv] ,l""ures and demonstratedits maintenance or toca[y estabtished rer"]s ot se*ice 
"tln;;;;:',1;;;;"r.r"nt may record itscost of maintenance in rieu of depreciation. Ttre informaiion- ilort tl" condition andmaintenance of condition of the government infrastructure assets srrould assist financialstatement users in evatuating a tocal government anO its jerfo^ince irer time.

According to the requirements of GASB 34, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate theaforementioned assets over thek estimated us"rri rit" 
"iiof 

j"rltop a system of assetmanagement designed to maintain the servr.ce delivery to near perpeiuny. f the governmentdevelops the asset management sftem, ftll9 moaifiei appioacli i-niin periooicatty 1at teastevery three years), by categorv, measures and demonstrate its mainienance or rocary estabrishedlevels of service standards, the government may record its cost oi maintenance in lieu ofdepreciation rn this particurar respect, the Municiparity rri" Li""t"o the use of recognizingdepreciation under the usefur rife method and it 
"ont"rpr"tui 

to 
"oit-in-ue 

tnis treatment on saidbasis.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALIry AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets seryes as an important indicator of the Municipality,s financialposition at the.end of the fiscat year. tn tte 
""T 

oi tt e frlrnf"ffitioi Cioi", pr,rury gorurnr"ntassets exceeded totat tiabitities bv $48,178,261 
"t tn" lnJ-ti zofo, as compared with$47 7L7,602 as restated which refrect an increase or $r.ooo,oss ;r"-r-pluvious fiscar year. Thefollowing condensed statement of Net Assets of the primatior"rnr"].t'"t o,r" on 

" 
comparativebasis the most important comoonents of the $f,ooo,osti in"ruui" ,"nJa"o in the Net Assetsfigure.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITYOF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF IHE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONNNUED)

Coid..Eod $rtfirdn of Nlt f..ar6
Cu@t and orhor as|s

Cured and o$or tisbihies

lnvested in Epitat asts, net of retated

2070 2009

94,669,823 92,427,207

20,324,O44
74,345,779

18,67A,250

73,74a,957
$ 7,645,794

596,822

2,242,616

(633,906)

1415,a63

*
9%

7%

2%

(7%t

5%

3%

27%

72%

3%

9,574,789
36,976,773

16,457,562

44,4@,7AO
11,007,343

17,249,462)

$ 4a,178,261

10,144,695
35,160.910

42,62A_AA0

4,724,209

14.235,4A7)

$ 47.!77-602

45,309,605 1,181,957

1,831,900
2,243,134

t3.054.37s'

$ 1060,659

100,0m,0(n

80,000,000

60,000,000

40,000,000

20,000,000

12010 r 2009
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENTS DtscussloN AND ANAL'|6|S _ (CONINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OFTHE MUNICIPALIryAS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

ChanEies in Net Assets

The Municipality's net assets increase ty $1,060,659. Approximatety fifty eight percent (58%) ofthe Municipality's totar revenue came from taxes, whire iorty per"eni 1+cixj i"srrted from grants
and contributions, including federal aid. Charges for Services provided one percent (1%), lnterestand lnvestment earnings (1%) and miscellaneous (1%) of iotat revenues. The t4rnicipatity,s
largest expenses included items such as general government, health and wetfare servjces, public
works, community development and public safety. The following table and graphic presentation
includes in absolute and relative terms, the composition of reveiues and expenses for the fiscalyears ended on June 30, 2010 and 20O9. Such analysis helps the reader to evaluate the
Municipal administration performance in the administrati;n of its current financiar operations.
coi&lrl3d s€t.rn€.il oflctMlt s

Operating g6rts a.d .ontributions

capiral SranB and contribirtions

Municlpal sal6 and @rA
Muni.ipar license te
GE.ts and @ntdbulioB not rBtricted to

lnterBt and i.vBtment Erni.gs

CuhuEandEEtiorl

Economic deverogoent

Communty devetopmedt

l.ter6t on lonE-tem debt

Net assets, D€gjnning of ye€r (s restated)

Net assets, end of year

m10 2@9 Cn nEo

$ 35a,763

5,659,821

2,5!7,607

7,306,430

7,642,240

8,055,675

3,467.834

792,924

24A,345

$ 457,670

4,@1,844

2324,128

5,42L,827

1,676,545

9,490,4€9

5,412,276

533,392

620,244

$ pa,9o7)

7,657,977

149,479

L744,@3

{34,305)
(1,834314)

11,944,442)
(3,r0,46a)

(379,499)

(1,000,776)

(3,331,850)

(35,451)

t1.242,376)
1,495,59A

(331,494)

27.932

335,735

2,025
(L47,@4)

13,229,0251

2,277,245

(1,166,590)

$ 1,060,659

29/47,639 30,442,415

122%l

41%

a%

32%

tzx)
(79%)

(35,96)

(€4%)

(6196)

t3%)

(26e6)

l2%)
(15%)

!47%

11%

23%

3A%

(11%)

(10%)

196%

(3%)

3%

9,649,720

1,@4,A52

7,158,01A

2,574.083

4,100,050

279,7@

1,@8,762

8,4?r
1,256,493

12,*1,570
1,640,703

8,,100,334

1,018,4a5

4,431,544

251,836

1,473,O27

6,809

1,404,697

24,3a0,9a0 31,609,005

1,060,659 (1,106,590)

$4a,284,!92$47,!77.602

a

$ 4a,178,261 $ 47,717,602



COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANC|AL ANAL\5|S OF THE MUNtCtpALtwAs A WHOLE (COt{TtNUED)

Revenues 2010

Expenses 2010

r Cherges for services

t Operating Srants and
contributions

. Capital Srants and contributions

a Property taxes

a Municipalsales and use tex

i Municipal licens€ tax

r Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs

. lnterest and anvestment earnings

r General govemment
. Culture and recreation
r Public safety

. Community development
r Health and welfare
r lnterest on long term debt

. Economic Development

9



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENTS DECUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPAL| TS INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance related legal requirements.

Govemmental Funds

The focus ofthe Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Municipality's flnancing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

As of the end of the current flscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances amounting to $11,068,172, which represents an increase of $2,470,297
when compared with the prior year. Out of the indicated balance, $11,053,610 were reserved or
committed for the following purposes: (1) $46,267 to tiquidate contracts and purchase orders
corresponding to prior fiscal yeai 2) $3,OO7,7O2 for debt service payments; 3) $4,969,1O6 to
pay for capital projects; and 4) $3,036,535 for other purposes.

As of June 30, 2O1O, the General Fund, which is the main operating fund of the lvunicipatity,
reflected an undesignated fund balance of $14,562.

GENERAL FUND BUDGEIARY HIGHLIGHTS

During fiscal year 2OO9-2OLO, the Municipal Legistature approved revisions to the operationat
budget which resulted in further increases in revenues and current expenditures which
represented transactions detected during the normal course of business. Despite these budgets
readjustments and as previously stated, the Municipal administration of Cldra was able to
maintain a balanced budget as required by law as reflected in exhibit, Budgetary Comparison
Schedule. General Fund attached here to, budgetary analysis reflected a deficiency of
($1,845,230) of total operating revenues over current expenses.

CAPITAT ASSEIS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CapitalAssets

The Municipality's investment in capital assets as ofJune 30, 2OlO, amounted to $ 109,174,L46
which upon deduction of accumulated depreciation in the amount of $28,768,367 produced a
net book value attributable to capital atsets in the amount ot 574,345,779. Said investment
includes land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure,
furnishlng, computers and vehicles. lnfrastructure assets are composed of items such as roads,
bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, Iighting systems, and similar items.

10



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENTS DECUSSIOIiI AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2O1O

CAPITAL ASSEIS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED)

The totar increase in the Municiparity's investment in capitar assets for the current flscar yearrepresented approximately one percent (1yo) of net book value. oejreciation cnarges tor tne veirtotaled $2,437,069.

lT.Il1:,T,1,, Olgnces a significant portion of its construction activities through bond or notesrssuances. Ihe proceeds from bond and notes issuances designated for construction activitiesare committ€d in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be u;ed for any other purposes. As ofJune 30, 2010, the Municipality has g3,643,756 of proc"eOs irom-Oond and notes issuancesand-other restricted assignments that are mainly committed to future construction activities inthe Capital Project Fund- Local, State and Federat crants.

Debt Admlnistration

The Puerto Rico Legisrative Assembry has estabrished a rimitation for the issuance of generar
obligation municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the g;o; faith, credit an;'taxi.g
99w9r.of.:ach municipatity may be ptedged. The appticabte law atso requires that in order for lMunicipality to be abre to issue addition;r generar obrigation bondi and-notes, such rvruniciparitymust .have sufficient "payment capacity; as define-d in lct trlo. Oa. Such Act requires a
ilril.lp^1liY T1"l has sufficient payment capacity" to incur aoditionaigenerat obrigation debt if
lp o.egostts in the Redemption Fund and the annual amounts collected with respect to suchMunicipality's Special Additional Tax (as defined betow), as p.;""t"J OV cDB, is sufflcient toservice to maturity the Municiparity's outstanding generat obrijation debt and the additionarproposed general obligation debt.

The Municiparity is required under prevairing appricabre law to revy a speciar Additionar rax insuch amounts as shafl be required for the patment of its generat ooiigati6n municipar bonds andnotes. rn addition, principar ofand interest on aI generat ootigation ilunicipar bonds and notesand on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the isstiance of general obligation bonds
issueq. bl the Mlniciparity constitute a first rien on the MuniciparitlL Basic Tax revenues.
Accordingly, the Municiparity's Basic Tax revenues wouto oe aviitioil to make debt servicepaym€nts on general obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special

lllHi?,|I": Ey'"9-bylhe M.unicipatfty, together with moneys on depoiit in the MuniciparityL
Keoempflon t-und, are not sufficient to cover such debt service. ln the panicular case of theMunicipality of Cldra, it has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt service ongeneral obligation debt ofthe Municipality

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXI YEAR'S BUDGEIS AND RAIES

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as welr as federal and stategrants to carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and muntcipal taxes havebeen very predictable with increases of. approximately fire' pe'rce,it.- ieOer"t ana State grani
revenues may vary if new grants are available, but the revenue can be also prediaable. T-hosefactors were considered when preparing the Municipality,s OuOget for tfre Rscat year 2009_2010.
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COMMO]TIi'EALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MAMGEMENTS DECUSSTON AND ANALIS|S _ (CONT| UED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXI YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES (CONTINUED)

0n July 29, 2o1o,.the Municipal Legislature approved the issuance of a generat obligation bond
for the amount of $2,O1S,OOO, for the improvement of the Municipality,; ;ads and streets.

FINANCIAL CONTACI

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer,
custome*, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality,s finances an; todgrgnstrale the Municiparity's accountabirity. rf you have questions about the report or need
additional financial information, contact the Municipatity's Chief Financial Officer.
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Commonwealth of puerto Rlco
Municipallty of Cldra

statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

Govommeotal

Acdvltl6s
Business-Type

Actlvltl€s Total

Asrets
C5si and cssh equiv.tents
Cash with fscal agent
Accounts receivabte:

Municipal lacense tax

t6nd, mpro!€ments and connruction in prcgress
BulldincF, infEstrurure and other capirat assets,
net or depreci6tion
Totat capitat assets

Toial assets

Llabllltles
A.counts payabte and accrued tiabititjes
Dle to other govemmentat enuties

Municipal license tax
F€deralgEnt revenues

Due within one year

Due In more tian one year

Total llabllltles

Not Assets
lnvested in capltat ass€ts, net of rehted debt

Total net assets

13,364,643
6,645,45a

9,424
161,696
4L2,573

22,a28,3o5

44,654,7E7

30,250 13,394,493
6,645,45a

9,424
161,596
LL2,573

23,42A3O5

50,9L7,474

a7,776,AA6

67,4A3,O92

600,ooo

6,262,647
6,462,6A7

6,492,937

334.240

250,OOO

5,995,000

6,579,240

74,345.779

94,669,a23

1,74L,326
214.t35

7,20L,L32
23,956

2,742,O34
24,549,739

7,747,326
214,135

7,20L,L32
23,956

334,240

2,392,034
34584,739

39.912,322 46,49!,562

43,8rr3,093

4,969,106
3,OOL,702

3,036,535
(6,945,a72)

$ 47,a64,564

(303,990)

$ 313,697

44,460,7a0

4,969,106
3,@L,702
3,036,535

o,2a9,a62)

$ 4a,17a,261

6i,6A7

The notes i,o |tle financiat sratsmanrs al6 an integEl pad ot tiis staiemenr. 13
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Commonwetth of Puedo Rico
MunlclpEtityo, CtdE

St6temsnt of Adtvtttes
For th€ Ye6r End€d rune 30, 2010

1€qnFarq6

fudoi'h{h!

ctrG:d.ffibu6ddjdlo.F*@Ems

Ndal*.b<iiq6l:i@

The notes to the fnancial natements are an integrat p6rt of thls siEtement, 1-4



Commonwestth ot pusro Rtco
Munlclp€llty of Ctdra

Eatanc6Sheet
Govemmentat Funds

Jon630,2010

rhdlol)

! t 3,7OL,225 I 262,614 i3,Oo1.7O2 1,9\a,222

Fund <10 & 11) sdsr!rd.crc6 r

A@ufrFFIIC.daEruedrE6,c
oE & dhg a@mmetur suiB

RBdl@lediinonha]o'fun6:

-L !!!!4!9 L- 1,49qta -L 1!9!0!1 _L __j!S!!a _! _?t!pqg!q

_L q!!!g:a 1____149q l______-ie4!L _L!gf!r 1_34!!Eg

Th€ noles io rh€ linanciat siatements are an intogd pan or fii! sEtemenr 15



Commonweatth of puerro Rlco
Muntctpaflty of Ctdla

Statemant of R.venues, Expendlturs. and Changes in fund Balanc€s
Govomm6ntat Funds

For the Y6ar Ended ,uno 30. 2O1O

sFldRftnu.
futrd{oasrc.

rundlo1,

t 5,053,991 t

Eca (deicbq) or rcrnuG eer

orbr nmidns 5gG (le)

rob orher finandd ou@ {llg)

Fund b.r.ie, hlhninc as ed

3 t 7,306,430

2!395
7,6\723

1742r7

19Ltn3
2A42,262

1o1622

!311266 4,163t634

!@5,379

a3z3s1

1'055,mo

71,209,s)

(!5&,949) (25s,661) r,321.62

(7.30s)

____lElL!1!

476,34o
(s7o,o77) (!046,917)

(s,730)

(17,966)

t 60329 t t 4,s5e,r06 r 106.223 ! r1k17)

The nors lo lh€ linancial st 6me s aB .n integal pan ot this slabm€nl 16



Commonweatth of pusrio Rico
Muntctpalty of Ctdla

Reconclllatlon of the Balance Sheet - covemmentat Funds
to $e Stat€ment of Net Assets

For the Year End€d lune 30, 2O1O

ToCal Fund Bal.re, cov€6m6rat Fud.

Amounts report€d for c@ernme.tat Activities in rhe srstement ot Ner r6sds
aE different because:

Capial Assets used in Ewernmentat activities are nor financiat resourcE and thercfore,
are .ot leported in the funds. tn the cured penod, these amounts are:

Non Oepreiabte Capi!t Asts
Depreciabte c€pitat assets

Aeumutared Oepr*idtion

Iotat c6pitat as6ets

some of the Municipatity's revenues sjl be co[ected after yar end but are nor avairabte
soon enough to pay for the curEnt penodt exnenditure and theretore, a.e defered in

$ 11,068,172

$ 22,a29,305
72,436,003

e4,fi1,2!6)

Municipal Revenue Co[e{!on Ce.re, 45,073

Some liabilities 6E not due End pari?bte in rhe cfiest period and theretore. are nor
reponed in $e funds. Thce riabititje 6.sist of:

67,4A3,O92

(3O,737,7i3)

$ 47,864,564

GeneEt Aonds and Not6 rrayabte

Sl6re hsuEne Fund CorpoEtion

LIMS Repaymenr Ptan

Prop€rry lares oebr
Compensated Ab€ances

Lan.,till Obligataon

Tot6t Lon*le,m Liabitities

Ior.l Nat Aet3 ol govfircnld adtuntB

25,620,000

27,686
147,396
310,532

3,904,159
71a,OOO

The notss to th6 linanciat statements are an intsgratpart ol this statemenl. 77



Commonwealth of plerto Rico
Muntcipatity of Cidra

Reconclllation ot the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balancesof

Governmental Funds to the Slatement of Acflvlties
For the Year Ended June 30, 2O1O

Net cnange rn Fund B€tanc* , Torrt covernme.tat Fund3

Amounts reponed for governmentEl activities in the statement of Mivitj€€ are differcnt because:

Governmentar Funds reFod capitar oulays as expenditures. Howe\€r, in the covernmenrwide statemenl 0r
Activ(i€s and changes i. Net Assets, the cost of thos€ asseG is alocated over their estimated usefur rives as
depreciation expense. This is the arnount of capit;t asseis recorded in th€ curent p€riod.

capiiar as,s€ls rcceived as a donation are not recorded in the covernmentar Funds, be.ause clrrent financiar
not invotved; however, the transs.tion must be reflected in the covernmenlwide Financiat

statemenE based on the fair vatue of tie donated property. This is the amount o, donated capitat assets recorded
in the curreht period,

Depfeciation expense on capirar assels is reported in rhe covemment wide statements of activiti* and change in
NA Assels, but they do not require the use of clrent financiat resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not
reported as expenditures in Govemmentat Funds.

Disposal of capitar assers require removar of cost of the capitar asets from the capitar assei accouni on rhe
Governmenr wide statement of Net Ass€rs, reslhing in a toss on disposar of capitar ass€rs on the covernmeni,
wide staGment ofactivhies and change in Net assets,

Bonds and notes proce€ds provide current ,inanciat resourc€s to Governmentat Fu.ds. Repayment of bonds and
notes principal is an erpendjture in Govemmentat Funds, bln the repayment reduces lonFterm liabitities in the
Government-wide statement or Net Assets, This is the amount by which rhe debt proceeds exceed debt setuice

Ihe issuance of longtem debt provides c urrent finan cia I reso u rces to covemmentat Funds, whjteihe repaymefi
of pdncipal of long term debt consumes current finsnciat resources, This is the amount by which debt proceeds
exceed debt servjce pnncipat payments.

Some experces reponed in the Ststement of Activiti€s do not requirc rhe use of current ,inanciat resoure and
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in covemmentat funds.

Repaynent of tong term Land tnformatjon Management System (L[VS) debt is an expenditure in covemmenrat
Funds, but the repavment feduces rong term LrMs debt in the Go!€rnment.wide statement of Net Assets. This is
tie amount paid in the cuned peiod.

Change in landfill accruat

LonS-term compensated absences are reported in the covemmentwide statement of Activities and changes rn
Net Assets, but they do not require the use of current financiat resources. Therefore, tong term compensated were
not repoted 6s exp€nditlres in Govehmentat Funds, -rhe folouing amount represents the change in tong:rerm
compersated absences from priorr€ar,

Change ltr Nct As.eE ot covehmsrtat Ac[vtteE

2,470,297

12,006,800

476,344

(2,236,645)

(9,449,579)

1,055,000

(2,370,000)

(27,6a6)

91,303

47,000

@26,752)

-i.___!?399I!-

The notes to the financiat sratemems arean integratpart ofthis statement. 1a



CommorMeath of pue(o Rlco
Muntctpa[ty of Ctdra

Statement ot Net Assets
Proprietary F0n*Businels Typ€ Activity - Enteryrtse Fund

cash and cash equivatents

Total current assets

NoncunEnt Assets:

CapitalAssets:

tand
Buildjng

Machinery and eql,,ipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total non-current assets

Liabllltles:

Curent Uabtttttes:

HUD S,ection 108 Loans cuarantee.principal

Totat cur.ent tiabitities

oncunent Llabllitl€s:
LonE Term t-iabilities:
HUD Section 108 Loan cualante€

Total noncurreDt tiabilities

Totaltiabitities

lnvested in capitatAssets, net of retated debt

Busines5 Typs

Activltiy
EnteQdse

$ 30,250

30,250

600,000
6,669,83A

180,000
(547,151)

6,462,6a7

6,492,937

250,000
334,240

544,240

5,995,000

5,995,000

6,579,240

6\7,647
(303,990)

$ 313,697

The notes to the fiianciat nabments aG an integrat paft of rh6 $aremeht 19



Commonwealth of puerto Rico
Muntctpallty of Cidra

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprlatary Fund - Bustness Type Actvtty - Entarpdse Fund

Year Ended June 30,2010

Op€Iatlng revsnues:
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

OP€ratlng exP€ns€*
Depreciation and amonization

Total operating exp€ndttures

Operating income (Lo6s)

Iton-operatlng revenue3 (oxpens8):
PaymentePinciDal,Huo S€ction 1Oa toan

Total non{perating revenues (expenses)

lncome lio6s) before t.ansrsrs

TmnsreIs iiom Governmentat Activhies

Totar net ass€ts beginning as resrared

Total net assets€nding

25,OOO

25,000

200,4!9

200,419

1775,4L91

(225,000)
(345,O77)

(57O,O77)

(745,496)

570,O77

(175,479)
449,116

313,697

The .otes to rhe lina nciat statements are an integEt pan of rhis statement 20



Comrnonwealth of puerto Rico
Muntctpallty of Gdra

Statem6nt of C€sh Flows
Prop etary Fund - Buslness Type Activity - Enterpds€ Fund

Year Eded June 30, 2O1O

Cash Flows from Ooeratind Activlties:

Receipts from Customers

Net C6sh Provided (t s6d) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capliat and Retatod FinandnE Actlyt es:

Principal paid on capitatdem
lnterest paid

TEnsfer in from the covernmenta I Activities

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Caphat and Retated Ftnancin6 Ac vtties

Balance-beginning of the )€a r as r€stated

Balance end of the year

Reconclliatlon ot OoerattllE tncome to Net Cash ftovid€d (Js€d) bv
Oo€rathE Activltl6s:

Operating loss

Adjustments to Reconcite Operating tncometo NetC6sh Used by Operating Activitiesi

oepreciation expenses

TotalAdjustments

Net Cash Provld€d (Us€d) by Operafing Ac vtfles

Noncash irlvestlng, capitat and tinanctng ac vtU6s:

25,000

25,000

(225,0OO)
/.345,O77)

570,O77

5,250

30,250

$ {175.419)

200,479

200,419

$ 25,000

The nots to the financia I staGments arc an integrat part of this statemenL 2t



COMMOI{WEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Municipality of Cidra (the lvunicipality) was founded on the year !g17. The
l\4unicipality's governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body. lt is
governed by a Mayor and a sixteen member l unicipal Legislature who are elected for a
four-year term.

The N4unicipality provides a furr range of services for its citizens. These services incrude
public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and welfare, economic
development, education, and other miscellaneous services.

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
applicable to governmental units.

Municipality conform to
America ("USGMP') as

ln June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's and Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments." This Statement, known as the Reporting Model, provides for the
most significant change in financial reporting for state and local governments in over 20
years and affects the way the lVunicipality prepares and presents financial information. The
Statement was adopted as of July 1, 2002. ln addition to this Statement, GASB Statement
No. 37, 'Basic Financial Statements and l\ranagement,s Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASB Statement No. 39, "Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these financial
statements,

As part ofthis Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization
of local government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement
permits an optional four-year delay for implementation to fiscal year ended on June 30,
2OO7 - The Municipality implemented the capitalization of infrastructure since July 1,
2002.

The followlng is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the tVunicipatity:

A. Component Units

ln evaluating howto definethe [, unicipality for financial reporting purposes, management
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a p;tential
component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, of the GASB, as amended by the GASB Statement
No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units an
amendment of GASB Statement 14,'. The basic, but not the only criterion forincludinga
potential component unit within the reporting entity is if etected officials of a primiry
government are financiarry accountable for the entity. Financiar accountability exists if

22



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASTC FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONflNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT A@OUNT|NG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

the primary govemmental appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, and if
either.one ofthe fo owing conditions exist: the primary governminGan impose itswillon
the other entity or the potential exists for the otner entity to 11) provide specific financial
benefiG to or (2) impose specific financial burdens on th; primary government. A second
criterion used in evaluating potential component units is itthe niture and significance of
the relationship between the entity and a primary government are such that to exclude
the entity from the financial reporting entity would render the financial statemenG
misleading or incomplete. Based on the above criteria, the [4unicipality does not have
component units to include within its reporting entity.

B, Government-wide and fund financial statements

Financial information of the Municipaljty is presented in this report as follow;

1. Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and
provides an anaMical overvierr/ ofthe Municipality's flnancial activities,

2. The government-wide flnancial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all the activities of the Municipality and
its component units, if any. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business_typ;
activities, if any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
lnterfund activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the duplicating
effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenue.

Direct expenses are those that are charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly beneflt from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requiremenG of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included amongprogtam revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

3. Fund flnancial statements focus on information about the Municipality,s major
governmental funds. Major individual governmental funds are reponed as separate
columns in the fund financiat statements. The N4unicipality reports ihe following major
governmental funds:
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COMMONWEALTII OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASTC F|NANC|AL STAIEMENTS (CONnNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

General FundlOT) is the accounting entity in which all governmental activity, except
that which is required to be accounted for in another fund, is accounted for. lts
revenues consist mainly of taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenue,
charges for services and other.

Speclal Revenue Fund - (O2) State & Fedent crants- is the accounting entity in
which revenues derived from federal and state grants, is accounted for. ThC uses and
limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or
federal and state statutes.

Debt Serylce Funct - (7O & 1+ is the accounting entity used to account for the
resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long_term
general obligation bonds of governmental funds.

Capital PrcJects Fund - (2O & 2l ) State and Federat Grarts _ is the accounting
entity in which revenues derived from local funds and state grants or other restricted
revenue sources related to capital projects, is accounted for. The uses and
limitations of each capital project fund are specified by tvlunicipality ordinances or
state statutes.

4. Proprietary Fund Types focus on report any activities for which a fee is charged to
external users for good or services. The Municipality reports the followlng propiietary
fund:

Enterp se Fund - The Enterprise Fund, which was estabtished in Aprit 2007, is used
to account for operations (1) that are financed and operated in a similar manner as
private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general
public on a continuing basis, are financed or recovered primary through uses,
charges; or (2) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of
revenues earned, expenses incurred, andlor net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, accountability, or other purpose. The enterprise fund of
the Municipality inctudes land and buitdings known as "Hotel Treasure lsland,,
located in "Ave. Las Americas, BO. Bayam6n at Cidra, puerto Rico. The source of
income comes from rent received from rent received from facility of "Hotel Treasure
lsland".

5. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user,s
understanding of the basic financial statements.

6. Required supplementary information such as the budgetary comparison schedule_
general fund and othertypes of data required by GASB,

7. Notes to the budgetary comparison sched ule-general fund.
24



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

C. Financial reporting presentation

The accounts of the Munlcipality are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity, and discrete presentations of enterprlse fund.
The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self_balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.

Government has established the followingfund categories, fund types, account group and
discrete presentation of enterprise fund:

Govemmental Fund lwes

Gerera, Furd - ls the general operating fund of the Municipality. lt is used to account
for all governmental activity, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund - Local and State Grarts - Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from local funds, state grants or other restricted revenue
sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by
Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Speclal Revenue Fund - Sectton 8 - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for
revenues derived from section 8 choice voucher program. The uses and limitations of
each special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state
statutes.

Special Revenue Fund - Fedetat Cmni6 - Special Revenue Funds are used to account
for revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each special
revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Capltal Prolec6 Fund - State and Fedenl crcni6 - Capital projects Fund are used to
account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities.

Debt Serulce Fund - Debt Service Fund used to account for the accumulation of
resources for and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related
costs,

Special Revenue Fund - Other Federal Grcnts. - Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each
special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state
statutes.
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COMMO WEALII{ OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAUTY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONflNUED)

ProorletaN Fund Twes

Enterprlse Fund - fhe enterprise fund statements consist of State of Net Assets,
Statement of Activities and Statement of Cash Flows. This fund accounts for exchange
llke transactions, like private enterprise and its operations are intended to be sitt
supporting through charges to users. These statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus, which concentrates on an entity or fund;s net
assets.

AII transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (net assets) during
the period are reported. The statements are reported on the full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized jn the period earned and expenses recognized in
the period in which the associated tiability is incurred.

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financlal presentaflon

Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by the Municipality conforms
to accounting principles genera y accepted in the UniGd States of America ("USGAAP)
as applicable to governmental units. The accounting and financial reporting treatment
applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded \.vhen a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied, Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The Municipality has elected not to appty all Statements and lnterpretations issued by the
Flnancial Accounting Standard Board after November 30, 1989, in accordance with GASB
Statement No.20.

Governmental fund financiar statements are reported usingthe current financiar resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within the current period or soon
enough thereafter. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgmenS, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures when payment is due.
General capital asset acqulsitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds,
Proceeds from issuance of general long-term debt reported as othei financing sources.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Property taxes, other taxes, Iicenses, rent, and interest assoclated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when the government receives cash.

Private€ector standards of accounting and financial reporting issue prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Goveanmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the;ption of following subsequent
private€ector guidance for thelr business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to
this.same limitation. The Municipality has elected not to follow subsequent privatesector
guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants, and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments, if any. lnternally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they
are needed.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

E. Assets, llabilities and net assets

1. Cash and cash equivalents, and cash wlth fiscal agent- The Municipality,s cash and
cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short_
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund represents speclal additional property
tax collections retained by the Commonwealth of puerto Rico and restricted for the
payment of the Municipality,s debt service, as established by law. AIso, cash with
fiscal agent consists of unused proceeds of bonds and notes issued for the
acquisition of equipment and construction of major capital improvements.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

2. Receivables and payable$ Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred
to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
"advances tolrom other funds" (i.e., the nonrurrent portion of interfund loans). All
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as .due tofrom other funds."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, il any, are
offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to
indicate that they are not available for appropriation an; are not expendable
available fi nancial resources.

Receivables are stated net of estimated allo$/ances for uncollectible accounts, which
are determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic
conditions. lntergovernmental receivables in the General Fund represent mosfly
contributions from the Puerto Rjco Electric power Authority, which contribute a
specific percentage of their revenues as payment in lieu of taies. lntergovernmental
receivable in the special revenue fund represent amounts owed to the Municipality
for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded programs.

3. lnventories lnventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and,
consequently, the inventory is not recorded in the statement of net assets.

4. Capltal asset+ Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure
assets (e,9., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the
governmental activities column in the governmental_wide financial statements. The
Municipality defines capitar asset as assets with an initiar, individuar cost of more than
$25 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major ouflays for capital assets
and improvemenG are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Capital assets of the Municipality are depreciated using the straight_line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Doscrlptlon

Buildings and site improvements
lnfrastructu re

Vehicles
Fumiture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment

Useful Llfe

40 years
40 yearc
10 years
5 years
5 years

3 to 5 years

Caoltalization threshotd

$1
$1
$1
$1

$25
$25
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

5, Long.term obligationg The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial
statements included general and special obligation bonds;nd notes, and other long_
term liabilities, such as vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-term liabilities to other
governmental entities and landfill closure and post closure ctre costs.

ln the fund financial statemenG, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances
cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issueJ is reported as other
financing sources, whire bond issuance costs, whether or not withherd from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures in the generalfund.

6, Compensated absenceg Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days
per month up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fuily
vested to the employees from the first day of work. All vacation pay is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide financial statements.

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1_5 days per month up to a maximum of
90 days. Upon retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated
and unpaid sick leave at the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of
service with the Municipality. All sick leave pay and salary related benefits are accrued
when incurred in the governmental-vr'ide financial staiements when the employee
meets such criteria.

7. Claims and Judgment+ The estimated amount of the tiabitity for claims and
judgments, which is due on demand, such as from adjudjcated or settled claims, is
recorded in the generalfund when the liability is incurred.

8. Reservatlons of fund barance Reservations of fund barance in the fund financiar
statements represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for
speciflc future use or are not appropriated for expenditure, The Municipality has the
following reservations of fund balance:

a, Encumbrances Represent future expenditures under purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments. These commjtted amounts generally will become
liabilities in future periods as the goods or services are received.

b, Capltal Pro.r'ect$ Represent the reservation of amounts to be used for future
expenditures for capital projects under contacts and other commitments. These
committed amounts generally will become liabilities in future periods as thepoects are completed.

c, Debt Serulce Fund- Represents net assets available to finance future debt service
payments.

d. Othet Purposes. Represents net assets available for specific use and/or legally
segregated for other specific future use.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG poltctEs (coNTtNUED)

9. Net Assets - ln the government_wide statements, net assets are segregated into three
categories;

a. lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt; Consist of capitat asset balances
net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding balances of any bonds, notes
and other borrowings that are attributable to tie acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets, This category should not include cash that is
restricted to capital assets acquisition or construction (unspent bond proceeds)
and any unamortized debt issue costs.

b. Restricted net assets: Represent net assets that are subject to restrictions
beyond the Municipa|s contror. These incrude restrictions ihat are externafly
imposed (by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of othe;
governments) or restrictions imposed by the law through constitutional provisions
or enabling tegislation (inctuding enabting legislation passed by the government
itself).

c. Unrestricted net assets: Represent net assets that do not meet the definition ofnet assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted.
Unrestricted assets are often designated to indicate that management does not
consider them to be available for general operations. These types of constraints
are internal and management can remove or modify them. D;signations are not
reponed on the face statement of net assets.

lo.Accounting for pension Cost$ For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASBStatements No. 27, Accounting for pensions Oy itaie anA'Locat covernment
Emproyers (GASB No. 27), the state government of ihe commonwearth of puerto Ricois considered to be the sponsor of the Employee,s Retirement System of the
Government of puerto Rico and its lnstrumentaliiies (ERS) and System 2OOO, a mutt_
employer cost€haring defined benefit ptan and a hybrid defin;d contribution plan,
respectively, in which the emptoyees of the Municipality participate. The [runicipality
is considered a participant and not a sponsor, of thesjretrement systems since the
m€jority of the participants in the aforementioned pensjon trust funds are employees
of the Commonwealth of pueato Rico. Accordingiy, no portion of the net pension
obligation (NpO) related to ERS has been attoCateo io the Municipatity in the
accompanying basjc financial statements. The basic financial statements of the
Commonwealth of puerto Rico report the total amount of the net pension obligation of
ERS, including any amount that may correspond to the Municipaliiy.

ll.lnterfund and lntra-entity transactions. The Municipality has the following types of
transactions among funds:
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a. operating Transfers- Lega y required transfers that are reported when incurred as
"Operating transfer-in" by the recipient fund and as "Operating transfers_out" by
the disbursing fund.

b. lntra-Entity Transactiong Transfers between the funds of the primary government
are reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as
amounts due to and due from other funds.

12. Risk flnanclng- The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft,
tort claims and other losses. lnsurance policies are negotiated by the puerio Rico
Treasury Department and costs are allocated among allihe Municipalities of pueno
Rico. Cost of insurance alocated to the Munlcipality and deducted from the gross
property tax collections by the Municipat Revenue Coltection Center ("CR|M") ft theyear ended June 30, 2010 amounted to approximately $35O,OOO. The current
insurance poricies have not been cancefled or terminated. The cRrM arso deducted
approximately $353,000 for workers compensation insurance covering all municipal
employees.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in puerto Rico
and Government Development Bank for puerto Rico (GDB). proceeds from bonds and funds
related to certain grant awards are required by lawto be held with GDB.

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No.4O), Depos,.t
and lnvestment Risk Oisclosure, an Amendment to GAS8 Statement No. 3. This statement
requires that state and local governments disclose essential risk information about deposits
and investments. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2)
interest rate risk, (3) custodiat credit risk, (4) foreign exchange exposure.

cledit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulflll-its obrigations. rn complance with the raws and reguiations of the commonwearth,
the Municipality has adopted, as it,s custodial and credit rjsk policy, the Statement of
lnvestment Gudelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico.
Accordingry the Municiparity invests onry in obrigations of the commonwearth, obrigations
of the United States of America, certificates of deposits, commercial paper, binkers,
acceptances, or in pools of obligations of the municipalities of puerto Rico, which are
managed by GDB. According to the aforemen oned investment guidelines, the
Municipality does not invest in marketable securities or any types of investments for
which credit risk exposure may be significant. Therefore, the Mu;icipality,s management
has concluded that the risk rerated to any possibre ross rerated to defaurts by comirercial
banks on the lMunicipality's deposits is considered low at June 30, 2010.
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

lnterest rate rlsk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure
to declines in fair values by: (1) not including debt investments in its investment portfolio

at June 30, 2O1O, (2) limiting the weighted avemge maturity of its investments to three
months or less, and (3) keeping most of its bank deposits in interests bearing accounts
generating interests at prevailing market rates. At June 30, 2010, the Municipality's
investments in certificates of deposits are recorded at cost, which approximates theirfair
value. Therefore, the l\,lunicipality's management has concluded that at June 30, 2010,
the interest rate risk associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is

considered low.

Custodial credlt rlsk - ln the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Municipality's deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the Statement of
lnvestment Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of Puefto Rico the
balances deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are insured by the Federal

Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) generally up to a maximum of $100,000 per

depositor.

Custodial credlt risk -ln addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the
Municipality are fully securities pledged as collateral are held, in the Municipality's name'
by the agents of the Crmmonwealth's Secretary of Treasury, Deposits with GDB are
uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by GDB on

deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality through June 30, 2010.
Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that at June 30' 2O1O the
custodial credit risk associated with the l\4unicipality's cash and cash equivalents is

considered low.

Forelgn exchange risk - The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the
value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment
guidelines, the Municipality is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other
gpes of investments in which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant.

Accordingly, management has concluded that the foreign exchange risk related to the
lvlunicipality's deposits is considered low at June 30, 2O1O.

Under commonwealth of Puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks

must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository

insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of
Puerto Rico. ln addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB).
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The Municipality's bank batances in commercial banks of $6,982,817 in the generat fund,
$2,477,9A7 in the special revenue fund (O2), $3,701,225 in the capital projects funds _
state and federal grants and $262,614 in the others governmental funds were fully
collateralized at June 30, 201O.

The deposits at cDB of $1,725,534 in the special revenue fund (02), $3,OO1,702 in the
debt service fund that is restricted and $L,9LA,222 in the capital projects fund _ state and
federal grants are unsecured and uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried
by governmental banks.

RECEIVABLES

A. Municlpal License Tax - The lvunicipality imposes a municipal license tax on all
businesses that operate within the Municipality, which are not totally or partially exempt
from the tax pursuant to the lndustrial lncentives Acts of the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico. This is a self-assessed tax based on the business volume in gross sales as shown
in the tax return that is due on April 15 of each year, Entities with sales volume of
$1,OO0,0O0 or more must include audited flnancial statements together with the tax
return. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the tax rates were as follows:

1. Financial business- 1.50% of gross revenues

2. Other organizations- 0.50% of gross revenues

This tax is due in two equal installments on July 1 and January 1 of each fiscal year. A
discount of 5% is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15. Municipal
license tax receivable represents filed municipal license tax returns that were
uncollected as of June 30, 2010, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year is
recorded as deferred revenues.

3.

B, lntergovernmental lntergovernmental receivable in the general fund represents the
balance owed from the t unicipal Revenue Coltection Center (CRIM) at June 30,2O1Oas
described in Note 6, Also, part of this property tax receivable represents the amount due
from the CRIIV related to delinquent debts. Following is a detail of the property tax
receivables:

Proqam Descrlptlon

Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRtM)

Total

Ameu!

$ 45.073

$ !15-073
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lntergovernmental receivables in the Other Governmental Funds represent mainly
expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by the Federal Government. Following is a
detail of the intergovernmental receivables:

PrcEram Desc otion

Community Development Block Grants Entitlement

Total

Recelvable Fund

$ 946,957
6,082

155.369
6.774

$l-115Jt86

Pavable Fund

$ 2,659
657,816
242,944
271-.723

$LJt5;180

Amglr!

$ 116.623

$116-62it

Amount

$ 476,840

57o.O77

$ L01691Z

4. INTERFUNDTRANSACTIONS

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2010 are summarized as follows:

a. Due from/to other fund:

Fund

General Fund (01)
Special Revenue Fund (02)
CapitalProjects Funds (20 & 21)
Other Governmental Fund

Total

b. Tmnsfer inlout to other fund

Following is a summary of interfund transfers for the year:

Transfer out

GeneralFund

Transfer ln

DebtService
Fund (10)

Special Revenue Proprletary Fund-
Fund (70) Business Type

Activity-Enterprise
Fund

Total

PurcoEe

TransfeE funds to cover debt
service payments

Transfer funds to cover
Section 108 Loan Payment
(Hotel Treasure lsland)

34



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

I{OTES TO BASTC F|MNC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

5. CAPITAL ASSEIS

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of
acquisition by the l\4unicipality and a cost of $25 or more, are primarity funded through the
issuance of long-term bonds and loans. Asummaryof capital assets and changes occurring
in 2010, including those changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No.
34, follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation:

Govemmental Activitios:

Capital asset, not belng depreclated:

Construction in progress
Land

Total capltal as.sets not belng
depreciated

Capital assets, belng depreclated:

Buildings and building
improvements
lnf rastructure and lnf €structure
improvements
Equipments
Furnishing
Computels
Works ofan
Vehicles

Total capltal as.sets betng
dep.eclated

Less accumulated depreciatlon for:

Buildings and building
improvements
lnfrastructu re and lnfrastructu re
improvements
Equipments
Furnishing
Computers
Works ofan
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreclation

Total capltal as.sets belng
depreclated, net

Govemmental actlvities capltal
ass6ts, net

Balance
July 1.20(x)
As restat€d Addl{ons

$ 8,635,412 $ 868,493
22.249.956 476.344

Retlreme s/ Balance
Reclasalflcations June30.2010

30.925_368 L.344.A37 (9.441.900)

$ (9,441,900) $ 62,005
22.766.300

22.828.305

24,47 7,72A

25,727,a65
3,777,066
t,439,947

661,647
6,7a7

5.820.996

61.906.036

9,ra7,t7 7

1,585,309
191,518

15,245
21-,364

743.700

L7.L34307

(4,199)

(45,618)
(43,857)
(55,128)

{59.538r

r208.340)

33,648,700

27,3t3,!7 4
3,922,966
t,411-,335

627,aa3
6,747

5.905.158

72.436.003

(6,825,588)

\9,652,494)
(2,986,476)

(785,597)
(529,554)

(1,801)
t5.363.717)

(26.1-45.227 )

35.760.809

$i6686,177

(835,758)

(656,659)
(280,986)
072,422)

(93,516)
(660)

/196.249t

(2.236.650)

8.901.657

$ 1o246rtgt

2,249

44,676
39,870
5432a

59.538

200.661

(7.769\

819,449579

(7,659,097)

(10,309,153)
13,222,746\

(918,549)
,564,742)

(2,46L)
{5.500.428)

(2a.taL.2t6\

44.654.787

$i7t83n92
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTTNUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functionsi/programs of the

Govelnmenlal actlvltles:

Genela I govern ment
Public safety
Pubticworl.s
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Community development

Total depreclallon erpenseEovernmental actlvltles

N4unicipality as follows:

Buslness - Wpe actlvltles

Capltal as.ret, not belng
dep,eclated:

Land

Total c€pital assets not belng
depreciated

Capltal assets, belng deproclat€d:

Building
Machinery and equipment

Total capltal asrets being
depreclated

Less accumulated deproc{atlon tor
Building
l\rachinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreclatlon

Total capltal aisets belng
depreclated, net

Euslncss - type Aciiviti6 caplta l
assets, net

Balarce
July 1, 2OO9
as restated Addltions

$ 600.000 $ -

600.000

(764,419)
(36.000)

(346.732\ (200.419)

6.463.106 {200.419)

6,669,838
180.O00

6.849.838

G46,732)

Retirem6nts/
Adiustm€nts

$-

Balance
,une 30. 2010

Amounl

$ 763,513
a87,a92
466,327
36,204

197,501
185.913

$2236-650

$ 600.000

600.ooo

6,669,838
180.000

6.849.438

(551,151)
(36.000)

1587.151)

6.262.87

$ 2063J06 $ AOtuUgI $ .j $ 6f62-687

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs ofthe N4unicipality as follows:
Buslness -tvoe Actlvllles
Community development

Total depreciation expense€ovemmental activities

$ 200.419

$200.419
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6. PROPERWTAXES

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by
May 15 of each year with the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM), a governmental
entity created by the government of puerto Rico as pan of the N,iunicipal Governmental
Autonomous Law of August 1991. Real property tax is assessed by the CRll\4 on each piece
of real estate and on each building.

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and js based on current vatues for
personal property and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on
personal property must be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real
property may be paid in two instalrments by July 1 and .,anuary 1. rh; cRrM is responsibre
for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf of all the
municipalities of Puerto Rico. prior to the beginning of each flscal year, the CRIM informs
the Municipality of the estimated amount of propeny tax expected to be collect for the
ensuing fiscal year. Ihroughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality
based on the initial estimated collections, as modified by the quarterly revisions oi
estimates required law. The CRIM is required by law to prepare a liquidation statement on a
Jifcal Jeal basis, whereby a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the
Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This preliminary liquidation has
to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than thaee months after fls;al year€nd, and
a flnal liquidation made not later than six months after year_end, subject to the verification
by its lndependent Auditors. tf the CR|M remits to the Municipality property tax advances,
which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable from the iRlN4 is recorded at
June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually collected by the CR|N4, a payable
to the CRIM is recorded at June 30.

The, CRIM issued the preliminary liquidation noting that the collections exceeded advances
by $45,073. ln the governmental funds, the entire receivable has been offset by deferred
revenue since the excess was not available to pay liabilities of the current period. In the
government-wide financial statements, the entire receivable is recognized as revenue.

On )anuary 26,2OO0, public Law No. 42 was enacted, which authorized the CRIIV to obtain
a loan up to $200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to a ow for the
financing of the debt that the Municipalities of puerto Rico hav6 with ttre cRI\4 arising from
final settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections through fiscal year
ended June 30, 2OOO.

The amounts that the Municipalities will collect from additional property taxes resulting from
increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of puerto Rico to t-he Municipaliti;s are
assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy was the result of
the Public Law No. 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. On Octoner 7L,2ei)1, public Law No.
146 was enacted to amend public Law No. 42, to extend the loan amortization period up to
30 years. Also, on October I!, 2OO2, pubtic Law No. 172 was enacted, to provide as an
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6. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED)

option for the Municipalities to include the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have
with the CRlful arising from final settlements of property tax advances versus actual
collections for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2O01 with the loan authorized through Public
Lavi, No. 42 enacted on January 26, 2O0O.

On June 26 1997, Public Law No. 21 was enacted, which authorizing the CRIM, among other
things, to sell the property tax receivables related to taxpayers who owed property taxes
lrcm !974to 1996. Such property tax receivables were purchased by the Public Financing
Corporation, a subsidiary of the Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB) using
the proceeds of a bond issuance executed for such purposes. Said Law imposed the CRll\4
the obligation to replace uncollectible property tax receivables with any valid property tax
receivable o equivalent in money, Subsequent to the approval of the Law and to the sale
transaction, it was detected that a substantial percentage of the receivables sold were
uncollectible. ln order to protect the economic damage to the financial structure of
municipalities caused by the substitution of uncollectible tax receivables with sound
collectible receivables, on October 1,7, 2OO1,, Public Law No. 146 was approved and
enacted. Through this Law, the CRIIV was authorized to obtain a loan from any qualified
financial institution and pay in advance the outstanding balance of the bonds issued and
any related cost incurred for the purchase by the Public Financing Corporation (a GDB
subsidiary) of the tax receivables.

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of
property taxes on the first $ 15,OO0 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts,
the Puerto Rico Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the
Municipalities, except for property assessed at less than $ 3,500 for which no payment is
made. As part of the lvlunicipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be paid by
the Puerto Rico Treasury department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January 1, 1992.
ln addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of
up to $ 50,000 of the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than
$150,O00.

The annual tax rate is 8.58% for real property and 6.58% for personal property of which
1.O3% of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 5.8% and 3.8%,
respectively, represents the Nlunicipality's basic propeny tax rate which is appropriated for
basics and accounted for in the general fund, A portion of such amount is deposited in an
equalization fund together with a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico
electronic lottery and a subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Fromsuchfund,a
distribution is made to all municipalities; (b) 1.75% represents the ad valorem tax restricted
for debt service and accounted for in the debt service fund. The Commonwealth also
contributes an annual tax rate of 0.2% of the property tax collected and such amount is
accounted for similar to item (a) above.
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MUNICIPAL SALES AND USE TAX

On July 29, 2007, an amendment to Act No. 177 of )uty 4, 2006, known as the "Tax
Fairness Act of 2006", was enacted with the purpose of establishing a mandatory sales and
use tax of 1.5% at the r\4unicipar Lever. The Municiparities of puert; Rico are responsibre to
collect 1% of the corresponding tax with the same exemptions and limitations that the
portion collected by the Treasury Department. The Act provides an optional surtax on the un_
process food. This surtax must be approved by the l\4unicipal Legislature. The Treasury
Department is responsible to create, the Municipal Devetopment fuiO 1.tXy, ttre tvtunicipat
Redemption Fund (.3%) and the Municipat lmprovements Fund (.1%) with the remaining
0.5%. The Municipality coltected $ !,642,240 du,ingihe year ended June 30, 2010.

AOCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2O1O are summarized as follows:

8.

R*nue FuId D€bt Sentce
(02)-9.t & Fsnd -
L@l GE.t5 {1o & ,.1)

Fund (20 &21) Other
- Srate & Gov€omental

tdl GEnt3 FundD6dl.llor

s 475,324 $ 545,417 $ , $ 5A6,825 g 21,311 g 1,62&877

Acrrued liabilities 6a.aa1 16.063 , 2.162 25343 11234s

$ -544205 $ _561r{!0 g- 6___SSSBEZ i 46-68l S t-ilU.-?2o

9. DUE TO OITIER GOVERI{MENIAI ETTMES

The amounts due to other governmental entities in the general fund include the following:

Governmental Entltv

General Seruices Administration
Retirement Slstem Administration
Puerto Rico Telephone Company
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority
Department of Labor-unemplolment program
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Employee Association

Total

Amount

$ 357
155,551
47342
a2,426
3,476

30.543

$-lg;r35
l.O.DEFERRED REVENUES

A. Munlcipal License Tax- The deferred revenues of $ 7,201,132 in the general fu nd relates
to municipal license tax collected in fiscal year 2OO9-10 that will be earned in fiscal year
207G1,7.
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10. DEFERRED REVENUES (CONTINUED)

B, Federal Grantg The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds
represents the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have
not been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federa I government are as follows:

Amount

$ 23.956

s_23t56

ProEEm Oesc otion

Child Care and Development Btock crants

Total

11. LONG,TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Beglnnlng
BalanceDescrlptlon

Eorrowlngs
orAddftions

Payments or
Deductions

Endln€l
Balance

Due Withln
One Year

Bonds Payable
Notes Pa)€ble
State lnsurance Fund
Corporation

LIMS Repayinent Plan
Property Taxes Oebt
Compensated Absences
Landfill Obligation

Total

$19,840,000 $1,980,OOO
10,935,000 390,000

$ (740,000) $ 21,080,000
(54O,O00) 10,785,000

238,699
310,532

3,O7 7,679
765.000

27,6a6

L,372,O47

(91,303)

(475,567)
{47.OOOl

$11a93370)

27,646
447,396
3]0,532

3,908,159
714_000

$6-97q23

$ 820,000
640,000

27,6A6
96,816

310,532
450,O00
47.000

$2192-034$35;160-9:10 53709133

1. LegalDebt Margin-The Municipatity is subject to a legat debt margin requirement, which
is equal to 10% of the total assessment of property tocated withi; the Municipality ptus
balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid
with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service. ln addition, before any
new bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be sufficient to
cover the poected debt service requirement. Long-term debt, except for the bonds
payable, is paid with unrestricted funds.
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11 LONeTERM LtABtLmES (CONTTNUED)

2. Bonds Payable The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Bonds payable
outstanding at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Type of bonds
Maturlly

Date
Orlglnal
Amount

Range o,
lnterest Rales

Balance at
June30,2010

1995 Seriqs 7-L-27
1999 Seies 7-l-24
1999series 7-7-24
2000 Series 7-7-25
2002 Series 7-7-27
2OO2 Sedes 7-726
2oo4series 7.L-29
2oo4senes 7-7-1,4
2oo5series 7-L-29
2005 Sedes 7-7-27
20o6series 7 t-37
2oo8sefies 7-7-77
2010 Se.ies 7-7-34

Total tleneral obliElatlon bonds

$ 605,000
260,000
710,O00

6,440,OOO
1,335,000

5ao,o00
4,020,o00

905,000
435,OOO
730,000

5,O50.000
1,5a0,ooo
194O,000

4.86% to 6.75%
2.7O% to 7 .87%
2.8O% to 7 .81%
2.7O%1o 7.Ea%

5:O% to 6.5%
5.0% to 6.5%

5.O0%
5.00%

4.37%to 5.O%
4.23%lo 4.A%
6.6.2%1o7.25%

7.50%
5.00% to 7.50%

$ 430,000
210,000
570,000

5,335,000
990,000
4A5,000

3,520,OO0
420,000
385,000
610,000

4,795,000
1,350,000
194O,000

$ 21,080,000

These bonds are payable from the special ad valorem property tax of 1.75% which is
restricted for debt service and retained by the Government Development Bank for puerto
Rico for such purposes. Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable
are as follows;

Year Endl[g
June 30,

20L7
2072
20!3
20L4
2075
2016-2020
2021-2025
20262030
2031-2035

Total

$ 820,000
880,O00
945,O00

1,000,000
955,000

5,390,000
5,740,O00
3,835,000
1,515,000

$ 990,335
7,425,573
L364,472
1,307,301
1,244,797
5,a9a,477
3,361,751
!,543,262

24O,975

$ 16,713,823$ 21,080,000
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11. LONGTERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

3. Notes Payable The proceeds of the issuance of notes payable were used principally topay debt incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. ihe
notes are payable as follows:

Type of notes
Maturlty

Date
OriEiml
Amount

Ran8le of
lnlerest aales

Balan@ at
Ju.e 30,2010

2003 Generat obligations notes
2006 General obligations notes
2004-A Series- Section 108 Loan
200&A Serie$ Section 108 Loan
2007 Geneml obtigations notes
2007 Generat obtj€lations notes
2008 Speciat obtigations notes
2010 General obtigations notes

Total notes payabte

7-7-aO
7-7-73
*7-22
&a-24
7-7-a4
7-1-74
7-7-32
7-7-32

$ 725,000
545,OO0

s,100,000
1,895,O00

270,000
445,000

3,170,O00
3,170,OO0

5.O% to 6.0%
6.62%to 7.25%

Variable
vadable

6.48% to 7.50%
6.48% to 7.50%

7.50%
5.OO%to 750%

$ 125,000
345,000

4,500,o00
1,745,O00

205,000
350,000

3,125,000
390,000

$ 10,785,000

These notes are payable from special ad valorem property tax of 1.75% and the
Municipal sales and use tax of (.030%) which are restricted for debt service and retained
by the Government Development Bank for puerto Rico for such purposes. The Section
108 is payable from Special Revenue Fund - Federal crant funds. Tne Series 2008,
amounting $3,17O,O00, is payable lvith the revenues generated from the colection of
the .3% of the municipal sales and use tax imposed by the Municipality and collected by
the Puerto Rico Treasury Department.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Y6ar Endlng
June30, Pflnclpal
207L
20L2
2013
2074
2075
207G2020
202f2025
20262030
203a-2035

Total

$ 640,000
646,000
686,000
736,O00
641000

3,075,000
2,636,OOO

935,000
750,000

$ 460,425
618,859
574,565
535,181
492,026

1_,972,735
968,640
466,688

87,375

$ 6,120,494$ 10,785,000
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11. LONGTERM LtABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

4. State lnsurance Fund Coryotation- This amount represents the balance owed to the
"CFSE" at June 30, 2O1O wi be retained by the remittance during the next 12 months.
The outstanding balance is $27,686.

5. LIMS Repayment Plan- During the fiscal year 2OOG.2OO1the [4unicipatity authorized the
CRIM to retain the corresponding portion for the flnancing project of Land lnformation
Management System- L|MS, contracted by the CR|II. Alotai ot $776,667 is to be
retained in ten years period at an interest rate of 5.95% until November 2g, 2011. At
June 30,2O1O, the outstanding batance is $147,396. This amount is presented in the
government-wide fl nancial statement.

6. Property Taxes Debts. These amounts represents the balance owed to the Treasury
g€partrnent and to the Municipat Revenue Collection Center ("CR|M) at June 30, 2O1O.
The CRIM issued a setflement noting that the advances exceeded collections by
$310,532. ln the government-wide finincial statements, the entire amount has been
recognized as long term debt.

7. Compensated Absences The government-wide statement of net assets includes
approximately $2,396,000 of accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately
$1,512,OO0 of accrued vacation benefits, representing the Municipatity's commitmeni
to fund such costs from future operations.

8. Landfill obligatron- state and federar raws and regurations require the Municiparity to
place a final cover on its landfill site since 1994, when it stopped accepting waste, ;nd
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after
closure. ln accordance with Statement No. 1g of the GASB, "Accounting for Municipal
Solid Waste Landtill Ctosure and post{losure Care Costs,, the Municipality has
performed a study of the activities that need to be implemented at the l\4unicipality,s
landfillto compty with applicabte state and federal reguhtions. Based on this study, the
Municipality has recognized $ 71B,OOO as the Municipality's estimated current cost for
landfill postrlosure costs as of June 30, 2010. The annual estimate of post closure
costs has been assessed approximatelyto be $ 47,OOO for a period of approximately 18
years. Actual costs may be different due to inflation, changes in technology, or cha;ges
in laws and regulations. The balance of post-closure costs ia repofted in th; governm;t_
wide statement of net assets.
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12. PENSION PLAN

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and iG lnstrumentalities (the
Retirement System) is a cost€haring multiple defined benefit pension plans sponsored by,
and reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico. ltt regutir
employees of the Municipality under 55 years of age at the date of emptoyment bec;me
members ofthe Retirement System as a condition to their employment.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefiG pursuant to
legislation enacted by the commonwealth's legislature. Disability ietirement beneflts are
available to members for occupational and non{ccupational disabilities. Retirement
benefits depend upon age at retirement and the number of years of creditable service,
Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation.

Members who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of
creditable service or members who have attained 5g years of age and have completed ten
years of creditable service are entifled to an annual benefit payable monthly for life.

The amount of the annuity shall be one and onehalf percent of the average compensation,
as defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus
two percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of
creditable service in excess of 20 years. ln no case will the annuity be less than $iOO per
month.

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entifled to
receive the Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65
percent of the average compensation, as defined; otheMise they will recete 75 percent of
the average compensation, as defined. No benefiG are payable if the participant receives a
refund of his/her accumulated contributions,

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775% for lhe first $550 of
their monthly gross satary and 8.275% for the excess over $ 550 of monthty gross salary.
The Municipality is required by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of the participantb
gross salary. Totat Municipatity contributions during the year ended June 30, 2O1O
amounted to approximately $72S,OO0 this amount represented 1OO% of the required
contribution.

On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act. No. 447 of May 75, ].:gS:., which created
the Retirement System, was enacted with the purpose of establishing a new pension
program (System 2OO0). Employee's participation in the current system aa of December 31,
1999, may elect to stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to the new program. persons
joining the [4unicipality on or after January 7,2OOO, wi only be allowed to become
members of System 2OO0. System 2OOO will reduce the retireme;t age from 65 years to 60
for those employees whojoined the current plan on or after April 1, 19-90.
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12. PENSTON PLAN (CONTTNUED)

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan.
Under this neu/ plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which will be invested by ERS
together with those of the current defined benefit plan. The commonwearth of puerto Rico
will not guarantee benefits at retirement age. Iheannuitywill be based on a formula which
assumes that each year the employee,s contribution (with a minimum of g.275% to the
employee's salary up to a maximum of 1o%) will be invested in an account which will either:
(Ll ea'n a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant l\,laturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a
rate equal to 75% of the return of the ERS,S investment portfolio (net of management fees),
or (3) earn a combination of both alternatives. participants wili receive periodic account
statements similar to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances.
Dsability pensions wi not be granted under System 2OOO. Th; employer,s contribution
(9.275o/o of the emptoyee's salary) wi be used to fund the current ptan. Additional
information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2010, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement Sysiem,
Minillas Station, PO Box 42004, San Juan. pR OO94O.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Property Division of the Municipality is responsible of assuring that the Municipality,s
property is properly insured. Annually, the property Division compiles the information of all
property owned and its respective market value. After evaluating this information, the
Property Division submits the data regarding the Municipality,s properties to the Area of
Public lnsurance at the Department of the Treasury of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico
who is responsible for purchasjng all property and casualty insurance policies of all
municipalities. Setfled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

14. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements that have effective dates after June 30.
20IO:

a. GASB Statement No.54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010, with
early implementation encouraged.

b, GASB Concepts Statement No, 5, Service Efforts and Accomplishment+ an
Amendment of GASB Concepts Statements No.2. This Statement provides a
framework to be used by the GASB in considering guidance for reporting SEA by
state and local governmental entities and amends terminology anO ottrei
information in GASB: CS2

The impact of these statements on the Municiparity's basic financiar statements has not yet
been determined.
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Federalgrants:

The Municipality participates in a number of Federal Financiar Assistance programs.
Arthough the Municiparity's grant programs have been audited in accordance with theprovisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996, through June 30, 2010, these programs arestill subject to flnanciat and compliance audits by the granting agenciea and the
resolution of previously identified questioned costs. itre am6unt, ifiny, of expenditures
which may be disaltowed by the grating agencies cannot be determined at this time,
although the N4unicipality expects such amounts, ifany, notto be material.

B. Claims and lawsults;

The Municipality is a defendant jn several legal proceedings that arjse in the ordinary
course of the Municipality's activities. Certain of these claims are covered by insurance.
The administration believes that the ultimate liability, if any, would not be significant. As
a result, the accompanying financial statements do not in;lude adjustments, if any, that
could result from the resolution of these legal proceedings.

16. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

A. GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatemenG have been made in the governmental fund financial statements,
which are reported as an adjustment to the beginning fund balances:

Fund{2o & 21)

$ 1,877,111 $ 3,647.254 $ (26,116) $ a,447,565
F0nd balance b€ginning

Canelauon ot p.ior yqr

Fund b.lanc., begtnntnE

$2,798,893

(225,792)
1225,7921

f,5.6a5 66.6a5

$l:to569 $ 8178,458$ 15tuU3 12t73-101 ! L87LLU $l.64lr!1
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- YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O1O

- 16. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (CONTINUED)

- B. GOVERNMENTAL-WDE FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS

- The following restatements have been made in the governmental-wide financial statements,
which are reported as an adjustment to beginning n;t assets:

Descrloflon &!Cl- Net assets, begtnning $ 46,695,845v To adjust due to other funds e21,g72)
Cancelation of p.ior yea r accounts pa)€ble 156,6as

_ To restate CapitalAssets 326
To restate Propfetary Fund-Enterpise Funct 235.777
To adjust prioryearfund batances 35.s24

Net assets, b€glnning as restated q46.€9&l85

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

on Jury 29' 2010, the Municipar Legisrature approved the issuance of a generar obrigation
bonds for the amount of $2,O15,00O for the improvement of the Munictpatity,s road; and
streets.

47



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

BUDGEIARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Vartanca wtth
ActualAmounts FtnatBudEJ.t
(EudgetaryBasls) PosttlvsOdgnd nnat (Ses N;e 1) (N€gaUve)

REVENUES:

Municipal ticense tax
Fines and fofeiture
Ucenses, permits aod other tocaltaxes
Charges for services
lntergovemmentat

E(PENOM,'RES, E CUMBRAI{CES AND OIHER
F'iIATCING T'SESI

Current
General government

Heahi and wer.re
Culture and recreation
Economic devetopment
Education
Opercting transfer to other tunds

Total erpendltures, sncumbEnc€s and oiher
ilnanclng us€6

ErcESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVEIiIU€S OVER ruNDEF)
E(PEI{OTTURES, EI{CUIIIBRANCES ANO OIHER
fl l{Atrtcliic sqJRcE€ (usEs)

$ 1a.212.545 $ !8.2!2.545

$ 4,39a,904
8,370,554

20,000
1,230,000

30,000
3,aa5,2A7

600,000
7,800

1140.000

L4.2L2.545

9,7a3,595
1,533,522
4,395,049
1,230,o23
1,013,654

I2L,AO9
135,593

$ 4,398,904
8,370,554

20,000
1,230,000

30,000
3,115,247

600,000
7,800

440.OOO

La.212.545

9,7a3,595
1,533,522
4,395,049
L,230,O23
1,013.654

121,,1O9
135,593

$ 5,053,991
4,o5s,675

!78,217
352,546

12,494
3,115,288

L92,923
4,401,

240.345
L7.209.AAO

10,1a1,376
1,471,53L
4,13L7a5
!,454,492
1,001,51:t

229,750
707,A23
476-A40

19.055.110

$ (1a45.230t

$ 6s5,087
(314879)

754,2L7
lB77,454)

(17,506)
7

(a7,o77)
601

a199.655)

I1.002.6651

(397,781)
61,991

263,264
(224,4691

12,].4t
(108,641)

27,770
{476.440t

t442.565)

$ 1a845.230)

$ 17,209,880

$ 19,055,110

163,545
107,0a6
t46_2671

$a92tsa14

Explanatlon ot Dltter6nce6:

Sourc€€/lnfl orvs of resources:
Actu.lamounts (budgetary basis)"avaitabteforappropriatjon, from the budgerary comparison sch€dure

Uses/oumorvs of rosources:
Actual amounts (budgetary t'asisftotat charges to appropriations" from tie budgetary compaison

Differencerbudget to cAAp:
Non budgeted expenditures
Prior year encumbrances recorded as currentyear exp€ndiiuresfor cAAp basis

_current 
yea r encumbrances recorded as erpenditures tor budgetary purposes

Total exp€nditures and other financing uses as reported on th;stareme;t of revenues, expenditures, andchanges in fund batances
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

I{OTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

1. SIEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABITITY

A. BudEetarv Conttol

The Municipality's annual budget js prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting,
which is not in accordance with USGMP, and represents dipartmentat appropriatiorii
recommended by the Mayor and approved by the l\4unicipal Legislature prior to the
beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the
Municipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations withi; the budget, knorn as Mayor,s
Resolutions, do not require the approval ofthe Municipal Legistatu;e.

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund.
For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e.,
purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For USGMP
reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year€nd are reported as reservations
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be honored during the subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapseat the end of such fiscat year. Other appropriations, mainly capital projed
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature'has
authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made
available for current spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule{eneral Fund is
the budget ordinance at June 30, 2O1O representing the original budget. There were no
supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30. 2010.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Federal Grantor/Pasgthrough
Granto/Progtam ot Cluster Tlfle

Federal
CFDA

Numbea

Passthrough
Entity ldentitylng

NumbeI Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-through Commonwealth of puerto Rico
Depadment of the Education:

Child and Adutt Care

Total U.S. Department of Agricutture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT:

Direct Program:
Community Development Btock
Grants/Entitement Grants
ARRA-Community Development Block Grant_
Entiflement Grants (oDBG-R) (Recovery Act
Funded)

Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re
Housing Program
(Recovery Act Funded)

Section 8 Housing Choice
Vouchers

Pass.th rough Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Department of the
Family:

Emergency Shelter Grants
Program

Total U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Pass.through Commonwealth of puerto Rico
Depa(ment ofJustice:

Edward Byrne Memoriat Justice Assistance
Formula Grant

Total U.S. Department of Justice

10.558 Not Available

74.27a

74.253

74.262

74.a7 L

4,382

43a2

976,857

75,726

74,498

!,245,492

ESG{4.0G
720007 77,12474.237

2,329,O97

109,976

109,976

16.803
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77.258,
77.259 &
L7.260

20.507
20.509

!41,677

COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIIURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Fede,rcranto/passthrough Tl;[' .Lffi,jlf,',fi:.',
Grantor/Ptogram or Cluster Ti e Numbel Number- Expenditures

U.S. DEPARIIT4ENT OF I.ABOR:

Pass.through of Labor (Councit of
Occupational Development and
Human Resources): WorKorce
lnvestment Act Cluster:

Total U.S. Department of Labol

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Direct Program:
Federal Transit Formula Grants
ARRA - urbanized Area Formula

Pass.th rough the Commonwealth of
Pueno Rico - Traffic Safety
Commission
State and Community Highway Safety

Pass.th rough Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Department Highway
Safety and Drunk:

Driving Prevention lncentive Grant

Total U.S, Department of Transponation

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERMCES:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico - Family Depanment (ACUDEN):

Alzheimer's Disease Demonstrations
Grants

Child Care and Development Block Grant
Family Violence prevention and Services
ARRA - Chitd Care and Devetopment Block
Grant (Recovery Act Funded)

Total U.S. Department of Health and
Human Servlces

NotAvailable

10,03-08

0G03-08

1-4!,6L7

99,56a
2t3,747

20.600

20.60L

16,156

5,835

334,706

93.051
93.575
93.671

93.713

Not Available
NotAvailable
Not Available

NotAvailable

48,860
74,O4A
21,415

6,214

150,537
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

- Federal Granto/pass.through
Federal pas$through

reuErcr uranroTrassrrnroug-h CFDA Eo tv ldentifvln€
crantor/Program or Cluster Ti e Number - -'n;;;;'"'

Numbet Expenditures

- U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND
SECURITY

Pass-through the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico Governor Authorized Representative
(GAR):

Homeland Security Grant 96.067 2005€FT54oO9 45,089

Total U.S. Depanment of Homeland

__ Security

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL
AWARDS

45,O89

$ 3,115,404

The accompanying notes are an jntegra I part of this schedule
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERIO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO IIIE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

L. BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Munlcipality o, Cidra and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The basis of accounting is the same used to prepare the fund financial
statements. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular 4-133, Aud,ts of States, Local Governments, and Non_profit
Organizations.

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDEML FINANCIAL REPORIIi:

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule are included in the Special Revenue Fund
(02), Other GovernmenGl Funds in the Municipality's fund financial statements and in the
Proprietary Fund - Eusiness Type Activity - Enterprise Fund. The reconciliation between the
expenditures in the funds financial statements and the disbursements in the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is as follows:

2.

Desc.iption

Special
Revenue
Fund (O2)

$ 565,214

3,688,657

proprtetary
Other Fun.l-

Goverrmeotal EusinessType
Funds Actlyities Total

Per Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards

Non federal programs
expend itures

Total expenditures in the basic
financial statements

$ 1,980,113

64,808

$ 570,077

200,4L9

$ 3,115,404

3,957,884

$ 4,253,a77 $ 2,O4A921 $ 770,496 $ 7,073,738

53



,l

I / 7

\ /
Certified Public Accountants / Managemett Adviso$

REPOTT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE ANDOTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCAL 

'iATEI,4iNi;ENTONMEO 

Iru
ACCORDANCE WTH GOVERNMENT AIJDINiVC SATOIiOS

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Munictpal Legistature
Municlpallty of Cidra
Cldra, Puerto Rico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business.type

ffl::,i::.:::LTj"]11111",n9 tl: "cCr"eute 
remaining fund information of the Munrciparrty,ot

urqra, Fueno Rico, as of and for the vear ended June 30, 20lO, which collectively compriseifre
Munlcipallty's basic financial statem;nB and have issued our report thereon dated December
8, 2010, which was unqualified. We conducted our audit in accorOuna" *itf, 

"rOiting 
standardsgenerally accepted in the united states of America and the standaa appticaule to financiataudits contained in Government Auditinl Standards, issued by the Comfirotter cenerat of theUnited States.

ln planningand performing our audit, we considered the Municlpality of cidra,s internal control
:y::^L1i.lll",:!:-Tliq :: : gi:i. for desisnins our auoiting proclJures tor tne purpose of

Ldpez-Vega, CPA, PSC

expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
-toi tf," purpose of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of the Municipallty of Cidra,s irtern"i iontrot over financialreportin€. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipallty ofCidra's internal control over financial reporting,

A deficiency in internar contror exisrs when the design or operation of a contror does not alowmanagement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, toprevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A mateflal weakness is adeficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internar contior suctr ttufin"ru is a reasonabrepossibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial siaiemens wi not beprevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed toioentiry a[ deficienciesin internar contror over financiar reporting that might be deficie;ie;, ;ignrficant deficiencies ormaterial weaknesses. we did not identify any d;ficiencies in inteinal controt over financiarreporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Callc Paraa6 #1686, El Ccrezal, San Juan. P.R. 00926-i 144 - Tcl. (787) 777.s04.1
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PENTORUTO Iru

ACCORDANCE W|TH 6OVERNMENT AUD'rruC Smruonnos (corultueo)

Compllance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality of Cidra,s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of iti comptiance with certainprovisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
courd have a direct and materiar effect on the determi;ation of financiar statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and acaordingly, we do not express such an opinio;, rhe results of our tests disclosed noinstances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Gove rn ment Auditi n g Sta nda rds.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Municipality of Cidra ln
a separate letter dated December g, 2OlO.

This report is intended solely for the inJormation and use of management and federal awarding
agencies and passthrough entities. However, this report is a ma-tter of public record and its
distribution is not timited.

San Juan, Puerto Rico
December 8, 2010

Stamp No. 2575431 of the puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy ofthis report.

)

r \i/
LipeT-Vega, CPA, PSC

Certified Public Accountanrs / ManaAement Advisors
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Certified Public Accountatrts / Management Advisors

Ldpez-Vega, CPA, PSC

l\Ielrlbe

Cet

('edifi.d Puhli. {..^nnr",

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE wlTH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TOEACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAT CONTROL OV'R 

'drriiiiEiCE 
rr'r ICCONONTTCE

WTH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Munlcipal Legtslature
Municlpality of Cidra
Cidra, Puerto Rlco

Comollance
We have audited the comptiance of the Municipality of Cidra with the types of compliance
requirements described in the u.s. office of Managiment and Budget (oMB) circurai A-7g3Compliance Supplement that are applicable-to each-of its ma;or feJe-raf programs for the year
ended June_ 30, 2O1O. The Municipafity of Cidra,s major fedeiat progor. 

"r" 
identified in thesummary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule ;f findings and questioned

costs. Com_pliance with the requirements of laws, regutations, contracts, and grants applicableto each of its 
-major 

federal programs is the responsjbitity of the Munbila ty oi Cidra,smanagement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Municipaliti of Cldra,s
compliance based on our audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance. in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the united states of America; the standards appricabre to fini'nciar audits contained
in the^c:vernment Auditing standards, issued by the comptrotter cenerii of the united states;and O[48 Circular A-133, Audits of States, Loc;, covernments, and Non_profit Orglanizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular 4-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtainreasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with tile types of compliance
requirements referred to above that courd have a direct and materiar effect on a major federarprogram occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Municipalityof Cldrc's compliance with those requirements and performing ar"n o1n", procedures as weconsidered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that o-ur audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Municlpallty ofCidra's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Munlcipality of Cidra comptied, in all material respects, with therequirements referred to above that are,applicable to each of its m;jor federal programs
identified in 

-the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioneJ coJS for the year endedJune 30, 2010. However, the results of our auditing procedures Oiictosea instances otnoncompliance with those requirements, whjch are required to be reported in accordance withOMB Circular 4-133 and which are described in the accompanying'..n"Orf" of findlngs andquestioned costs as items, 10{l through 1O_O4.

---56Callc Parani #1686, EI Ccrczat, San Juan, p.R.009.26-tl{{ -Tct. (7S?) 777.8044 Fa:



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WTH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER C.ir,IiiiIrICE Ir.r ICCONOATCr

wTH OMB CTRCULAR A_133 (CONTTNUED)

lnternal Control Over Comoliance
Ilgnagem.ent of the Municipality of Cidra is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internar contror over compriance with the compriance requirements to above. rnplanning and performing our audit, we considered the Munlcipallty oi cidra,s internal control
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and-materlal effect on a major
federal program in order to determine.our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with ol\4B circurar A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of- internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do n-ot express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Municipallty of Cldra's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemar contror over complr'ance exists when the design or operation of a contror
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the n;rmal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type oi
compriance requirement of a federar program on a timery basis. A materiar weakness in iiternar
contor over compriance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internar contror over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a typeof compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

our consideration of internar contror over compriance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance. We did not identiry any deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified cenain
deficiencies in internar contror over compriance that we consider to be significant deficiencies
as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questions costs as items 1001
through 1o-o4. A significant deficiency in internat contror ovei compriance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance *itn a type of compliince
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged withgovernance.

Ceiified Publi(

Ldpez-Vega, CPA, PSC 57



INDEP.END,EI{T AUDITOR-S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WTH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TOMAroRpRocRAMANDrJlr'11.,[xfh?T[:LovER;iil;ilil;ilffi ffi-il;

- In" Munlclpality of cidra's-response to the findings identified in our audit are described in theaccompanying schedure of findings and questio;ed costs. we aio not uroit-mr"i"ip"ilty''ii
Cidra's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

we arso noted other matters invorving the internar contror over compriance and certainimmaterial instance of noncompliance, which ,ae have iuportuo to management of the_ Muntclpality of Cldra in a separate letter dated M arch 24,2OLL.

This report is intended for.the information of the management and federar awarding agenciesand,pass-through entities. However, this report is a matt; of pubric record and its dijrib;tion l;not Iimited_

4*hmr*
San Juan, puerto Rico

_ March 24,2O1-I

Stamp No. 2575432 ofthe puerto Rico
- Society of Certified public Accountants

- was affixed to the record copy of this report.

/

I Ldpe2-Vega, CPA, PSC

Ccnified Public AccouniaDb / tvanaaemcnt Advisors
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RlcO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED @STS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section I - Summary of Audltor's Results

Flnanclal Statemenb

Type ofauditor's report issued:

lnternal control overfinancial reporting:

Material weakness identified?

Signiflcant deficiencies identified not considered to
be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal awards

lnternal Control over major programs:

Material weakness identifi ed?

Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
be material weaknesses?

Unqualified

Yes No X

Yes None reported X

Yes No X

Yes No X

Yes X None reported

Unqualified

Yes X NoAny audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Circular
4-133, Section .51O(a)?

ldentification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

L4.278

L4.47 L

Community Development Block Grant - Entiuement crant

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$ 300,000

Yes No X
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPATIW OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FtNDtNGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2010

_ Section lt - Financial Statements FindinEF

D_uring our audit, we did not detect significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances
of noncompliance related to the general purpose financial statements that are required to be
reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIry OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FIND|NGS AND QUESnONED COflS (CO]iITINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section lll - Major FederalAward program Findlngs and euestioned Costs

Flndlng Reference

Program

Requhemenl

Statement of Condttton

10{1

Community Development Block crant-Enflflement program (CFDA
14.218); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Devetopm;nt

Reporting

During our Financiat Reporting test, we identified the followjng
conditions:

a) For the year ended 6/3O/LO the accounting records (administrative
cost) did not agree with the Financiat Quarterty Report by $2,901.35.

b) SF425, Federal Financiat Report (cash status onty) was not
submitted for the fiscat year ended June 30, 2O1O.

24 CFR, Subpart l, Sec. 570.489 (d) (1) states that the States shafl have
fiscal and administrative requirements for expending and accounting for
all funds received under this subpart. These requirements musi be
available for Federal inspection and must be sufficienfly specific to
ensure that funds received under this subpan are used in compliance
with all applicable statutory and regulatory provisions.

24 CFR, Subtitle A, Subpart C, Section 85.41 states (al cene?,t (!)
Except as provided in paragraphs (a) (2) and (5) of this section, grantees
will use only the forms specified in paragraphs (a) through (e) of this
section, and such supplementary or other forms as may from time to
time be authorized by OMB, for: (i) Submitting flnancial reports to
Federal agencies. AIso, Section (b) states that grantees wi use Standard
Form to report the status of funds for all non{onstruction grants and for
construction grants when required in accordance with 85.41(ex2xiii) of
this section. (3, Frequency. The Federal agency may prescribe the
frequency of the repon for each project or program. However, the report
will not speciry the frequency of the report, it will be submitted annualty.
A final report will be required upon expiration or termination grant
support. Besides, Section 85.41 (c) (ii) states that these reports will used
by the Federal agency to monitor cash advanced to grantees and to
obtain disbursement or outlay information for each grant from grantees.
The format of the report may be adapted as appropriate when teporting
is to be accomplished with the assistance of automatic data processing
provided that the information to submitted id not changed in substance.

Crlterla
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDUIE OF F|ND|NGS AND QUESflONED COSIS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2O1O

Sectlon lll - Major Fedaral Award program Flndings and euestioned Costs

FindlnEJ Reforence

Cause of Condltion

E f.ct of Condtfion

Recommerdatlon

Ques:tloned Costs

Managament R6ponse
and Correctlve Adton

1GO1 (Continued)

The Program financial management failed to report the disclosure of the
financial results and failed to have available for examination by us
duringthe application of planned audit procedures.

The ?rogram is not in compliance with the Code of Federal Regulation
24, Subpart l, Sec. 570.489 (d) (1) and Subpart C, Sec.85.41.

We recommend that the program should implement procedures in order
to assure that all Financial Status Report are prepared and submitted on
time. Also, we recommend that the program,s Management instruct the
Program accounting staff to prepare financial reporting with accurate,
current, and complete disclosure of the financial result of financially
assisted activities.

None

The Program will strengthen its internal control and procedures in the
preparation of the Federal Financial Report to comply with the
established Federal Regulations. Also, we are going to give instructions
to program's staff to submit quarterly the SF425, Federal Financiat
Report.

lmplementation Date; April 1, 2011

Responsible Person: Linda Robert
Federal Program Department Director
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COMMONWEALTI{ OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FtND|NGS AND QUESTTONED CO$S (CONnNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section lll - Major FederalAward program Flndings and Questioned Costs

Flndlng Reference LGO2

Proglam

Requlrement

Section 8 Houslng Choice Vouche6 program (CFDA 14.871); U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development

Eligibllity Test

statoment of condtflon We performed an eligibility test and examined a sample of fifteen (1S)
participant files. The following summarize the deficiencies found:

a) ln four (4) cases, the lnspection Checklist forms were not
marked as Pass, Failor lnconclusive.

b) ln one (1) pafticipant's fite, the Reasonable Rent form was not
completed when the participant changed from one housing unit
to another on 2008.

c) ln four (4) cases, the pHMrenant Certification is not signed by
PHA staff.

d) ln one (1) case, the participant's file did not inctude evidence of
updated Good Behavior Certificate and family composition
photo.

e) ln two (2) participant's files, the pHA failed to document
whether deficiencies found in the last inspection were
corrected,

f) One (1) participant's fite did not inctude the lnspection Form for
fiscal year Og-10.

g) One (1) participant's fite did not include the Famity Report Form
(5OO58) for fiscat year 09-10.

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Sections 5.609 estabtished that as a
condition of admission or continued occupancy, the tenant must
provide all necessary information and documentation required and
tenant's authorization to veriry income eligibitity.24 CFR Subpart K
Section 982.516 (a), established that pHA responsibility for
reexamination of family income and composition at least annually, (2)
the PHA must obtain and document in the tenant fite third-party
verification. Besides, Code of Federal Regulations 24, Sectioni
982.158(d) and 982.405 (b) states that the pHA must prepare a unit
inspection report and conduct quality control r+inspections.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAI-ITY OF CIDRA

ScHEDULE OF FtND|NGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Cause o, Condhton

E fect o, Condition

Recommendatlon

Section lll - Major FederalAward program Findlngs and euestioned Costs

Findlng Reforenca 1GO2 (Contlnued)

ln^addition, Code of Federat Regutations 24, Sections 982.54 (d) (15),
982.158 (f) (7) and 982.507 states that the pHA must upoaie tne
reasonable rent at the time of the initial leasing and before any
increase in the rent to the owner and all the times during the assisted
tenancy, the rent to owner may not exceed the reasonable rent as
most recently determined or rMetermined by the pHA.

The Program's officers did not obtain and complete the requjred
documentation to vatidate the participant,s eligibility. tn addition, the
N4unicipality has no effective monitoring review process for the
program internal quality control.

The Program does not meet all in compliance with Code of Federal
Regulations 24 and could have an effect in the performance on SEI\4AP
report.

The Program should strengthen internal supervisory quality control
procedures to monitor performance, ensure compliance with these
requirements and train staff on documentation and verification
process.

None

The Municipality's management concurs with the finding. During this
tiscal year 2OO7O-2011, we gave instructions to the program staff to
correct the situations commented in the finding,

lmplementation Date:. Aprit 7,2OaI

Responsible Person: Linda Robert
Federal program Department Director

Questloned Costs

Management Response
and Corectke Actlon
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COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF F|ND|NGS AND QUESflONED COSTS (CONITNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section lll - Major Federat Awad proglam Findlngs and euesfloned Costs

FindlnEl Rererence

Prcgram

Roqukement

10-o3

Sectlon 8 Housing Choice Vouchers program (CFDA 14.871); U.S.
Department of Houslng and Urban Development

HQS Enforcement

Statement ot Condtuon ln testing the Housing euality Standards Enforcement procedures for
Faited HeS inspections form HUD5258O; u/e found the following
situations in fifteen (1S) participants, files examined:

ln six (6) flles examined, we noted that the inspection report do
not indicate the final pass date. After the deficiencies were
corrected.

ln one (1) flle examined, the inspection report does not have
the initials of the lnspector Officer that certmes the date on
which the deficiencies were corrected.

c) ln one (1) file examined, the original inspection and r+
inspection forms were not in the file participant,s,

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Subpart l, Section 982.4O4 (a) Owner
Obligation, (1) The owner must maintain the unit in accordance with
HQS. (2) lf the o!,vner fails to maintain the dwelting unit in accordance
with HQS, the PHA must take prompt and vigorous action to enforce
the owner obligations. PHA remedies for such breach of the HQS
include termination, suspension or reduction of housing assistance
payments and termination of the HAP contract. (3) The pHA must not
make any housing assistance payments for dwelling unit that fails to
meet the HQS, unless the owner corrects the defect within the period
specified by the PHA and PHA verifles the correction. tf a defect is tife
threatening, the owner must correct the defect within no more than 24
hours. For other defects, the owner must correct the defect within no
more than 30 calendar days (or any PHA approved ertension). Besides,
Section 982.405, (a) The PHA must inspect the unit leased to a family
prior to the initial term of the lease, at least annually during assisted
occupancy, and at other times as need, to determine if the unit meets
the HQS. (See Sec. 982.305 (b) (2) concerning timing of initiat
inspection by the PHA. must conduct supervisory quality control HQS
inspections. (c) ln scheduling inspections, the pHA must consider
complains and any other information to the attention ofthe pHA.

a)

b)

Crlterla
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SCHEDULE OF FtNDtt{cs AND QUESI|OT{ED COSTS (CONnNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Section lll - Major Federal Award program Findings and euestioned Costs

Flndlhg Reference

Caus6 of Condltlon

1GO3 (Continued)

The Program did not implement and maintain adequate internal
controls to ensure that housing quality inspection enforcement met
HUD requirements.

The Program made housing assistance payment for units that did not
meet housing quality standards that could have an effect in the
performance on SEIVAP report.

The Program needs to implement internal controls and perform quality
controls which ensure that units are inspected in a timely manner and
inspections are in accordance with its administrative plan and HUD
requirement and should strengthen its monitoring procedures and
internal control to take immediate action over the use of federal funds
as required by federal regulations.

None

The Progmm's Management concurs with the finding. The Federal
Program Department Director will establish communication with the
program staff in order to strengthen its monitoring system procedures
related to compliance with HQS Enforcement.

lmplementation Date: Aptil 1, 2OtI

Responsible Person: Linda Robert
Federal Program Department Director

Effect ofCondttion

Recommendation

Questloned Costs

Management Response
and Corrective Actlon
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Section lll - Major FederalAward progtam FindlnEF and euesfloned Costs

Crlteria

Findlng Rorerance

ProgEm

Requlrcment

statement of condtUon We noted that the Section g Housing Choice Vouchers program did not
comply with the compliance requirement of Depository fureements.The pHA is requited to enter into depositary agreement with their
financial institutions in the form required by HUb. lForm HUD_51999)

10{4

Section.S Houstng Choice Vouche6 (CFDA 14.871), U.S. Department
of Houslng and Urban Development

SpeclalTest

24 CFR Subpan D, Section 982.156 states. (c) The pHA must enter
into an agreement with the depositary in the form required by HUD. [d)lf required under a written freeze notice from ffUO to itre Oeposifary:lij
The depositary may not permit any withdrawat Oy tne enA ofiunas ieii
under the depositary agreement unless expressly authorized by wriften
notice from HUD to the depositary; and (ii) The ;epositary muit permit
withdrawals of such funds by HUD. (2) HUD must send the pHA a copy
ofthe freeze notice from HUD to the depositary.

The.program is not performing an effective review of compliance
requirement that are required by HUD.

The PHA is not in compliance with laws and established regulation as
prescribed by HUD.

Procedures should be implemented to ascertain that the pHA complies
with the established Federal Regulation, as prescribed by HUD.

None

The Program will take procedures to comply with the preparation of
Form.HUD - 51999, Depository Agreement. The Muni;ipality will
submit a corrective action plan ouflining this finding to be correcied in
a detailed manner no tater than Aprit 15, 2011.

Responsible Person: Linda Robert
Federal program Department Director

Caus6 ot Condltion

E fect o, Condftton

Recommefidatlon

Questioned Costs

Management Response
and Correctlve Actlon
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SUMMARY SCHEDUTE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Curenl Stat6 of Prlor year Audlt Federal Award Ftndlngs - parl lll Ftndln6
(A3 requtred by Ot B Cticutai Ar33)

09{2 14.27a

L4.477

q,|gnat
Flndlng
Number

CFDA
No.

o9-01 14.271 ng our Davis-Baconm
proigcts: we found thg -following exceotions: a) ln one (1) case ttte
contfactor wqs llot informed in the orocurement orocess- of-thE
Iequirements for Davis Bacon A.J h) lh 

^na 
/1\ ^.ca +r,- ^^^.,-*li *-

have the orovisiqn for comoliance with Davis Bacon Act. i) lnl dj
cases. the pavrolls were not monitored for comoliance *ith n."*irii
WaEC-rate neither siEned bv the proEram's inspector. dt ln one (1) case
lnqrte nas no evidence of on€ite visits oerformed bv the proEra,n,s
insDector. e) ln one f,) constnrnti^^ nr ia^t rha .^hr,-d^, ,r;i -^.-.'#
timelv. allthe reouired weeklv pavrolls.

Full corrective act,on has been taken.

nE our contract orovisffi
COntraCtS formalized durinp the fiscal vear 2OOR-,nOO wa ^^ro; r^rr^.;^.
exoeotions: a) Qne (1) contract did not inctude orovisions comoliaice- wiii
uavrs.. Bacon Act b) Three (3) contracts did not include orovisior
cpmolianpe .with EnerEv policv and Conservation Act c) OneliiionGci
d]![ art include a orovision for comotiance with the Cooetind-Eiii
kiqhback":.d) One (1) contract did not include a orovision foicomolianE
with 'Eoual Emolovment Oooortunitv": e) One (1) contract did not-incifde
a_ugyigon for qo-motiance with the Seaions 103 and 1O7 of the Contraci
Work Houfs and Safetv Standards Act fl One (1) contract did not inctudEi
orovision fgr retention of all reouired records for three (3) veaE: pione (iI
@trlract did not include a orovision for comoliance with .Clean Air Act and
Water ACt h) One (1) conlract rli.l n.'r in.rr.ra . ^r wi.i^^ r^, nr66+r^^
access to GAO or otherfederal aEencv to books. documents. etc.

Full corrective action has been taken,

o9-03 ? performed an eligibm
Darticioant files. The followinE summariTe ihc .tFfi^ia^.iac farna--r n.i
(11 oarticioant admitted durins fiscat vear 2OO8-2OO9 waa;AE;;;;
the Waiting List. h) ln tw^ t2\ ^f rha rirac +h- .--^^^^h#
determination *ereffi
we[e not marked as Pass. Fail or lnconclusive. d) ln four (4) cases. ti;
staff OroEram used the incorrect Pavmpnr Rian.ter.t cl tn ana rr r rro;,1
PHA failed to docrrmpnt wr,a*,o. aoii^i."^i* r*x]^lf ^l^ill^^ifi
were corrected,
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SUMMARYSCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINCS (CONNNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Currenl Status of Prlor year Audit Fealeral A*ard Flndlngs - pan Flndlngs

Nocorrectiveac@

Full corrective action has been taken.

Anel\&ry Lol-lncome Persons. (OMB No. 2529{043) was notiubmittei'
for the fiscal vear ended June 30. 2008.

Full corrective action has been taken.

0747 74.2LA
the ftspalvear 2O0G20O7. The followinp summarize the situationsEund-i
one G) cqntracts did not include orovisions comoliance with Davis Bacon

Audit finding is no longer valid since has passed more than two (2) years
since the reports were submitted to Single Audit Clearinghouse. The
Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is not giving
follow-up to the finding and has not issued a finat decision i.spect io tn6

oflg[at
Findtng CFDA

08.o1 74.278 we rejrtized Earmarkinp Tes@
GlanvEntitlement Ptoaafi eftl aftpr nrrr nrnnaa,rra. u,a r^,,^.r th-+ +L^
Municioalitv has n"t .;-"t"ffi
that must be used.rr".ffi

o&02 74.278 . Section 3 Srmmarv Ren^ri

o8-03 74.278 We reglizqd Earmarkffi
GfanvEntitlement Propram and after our orocedurei we-foundltre
iollowinE exceotions: la) The Dpnartm.nt'c m,^..rama^+ ,r^6. ^^r

to compile
information about their comDliance with the environmpntat ;;;
rFcnnneihilitv /hl E^r+ha ^,^i6^+- -
pedormed. a writteffi
58.35 (b). was not made by the Deoartment (Estabfistrino *"",t il*
environmental review was not reouired).

Full corrective action has been taken.



COMMOI{TVEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SUMMARYSCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Cu.aeit Status ot Prtor yea, Audit Foderal Atvar.t Flndlngs _ part llt Flndlngs
(As requtrod by OMB Ctrcutar A-r:B)

07-o2
Progr.am qnd after our oroc"drr"s: *r-forif-thii-iiEiu-ii iIil
Pain4ned.duringiiepsleptiseat vear a mo;thh;ve;A;;h;;j;;
rn_lorks qf aporo,,imat"r, $27o.ro8.oz. Atlrnll6.ld67. ii?iffi
balance in books was $263.412.85.

Audit finding is no tonger valid since has passed more than two (2) years
since the reports were submitted to Singte Audit Cfearingnousiri fne
Federat Agency who detegated the funds tJtne uunicipatity"is noilirin!
follow-up to the finding and has not issued a finat decision i""p""t ioin;
finding.
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